2019 - 2023

AGREEMENT

between

BOARD OF EDUCATION HARRISON CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT HARRISON, NEW YORK

and

HARRISON ASSOCIATION OF TEACHERS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMB	LE]
ARTICLE	I: Recognition Agreement]
A.	Recognition Resolution]
B.	Duration	1
C.	Dues Deduction	1
D.	Requirement of Legislative Approval	2
ARTICLE	II: Definitions of Terms Used in This Agreement	
	III: Negotiations	
A.	Procedures	
B.	Meetings for Negotiation Purposes	3
C.	Selection of Representatives	3
D.	Negotiation Meetings	4
E.	Impasse Procedure	4
F.	Study Committees for Negotiation Purposes	4
G.	Availability of Budgetary and Statistical Information	
H.	Negotiation of Matters Not Specified	
A.	Negotiation with Other Organizations Prohibited	5
J.	Maintenance of Standards	
K.	Fair Practices - Professional Teaching Personnel	5
ARTICLE	IV: Teacher-Administration Liaison	
A.	HAT Representatives	5
В.	Mentor/Intern Program	6
ARTICLE	V: Professional Development, Educational Improvement & Academic Freedom.	6
A.	Professional Development	6
В.	Professional Workshops, Conferences, and Visitations	7
C.	Academic Freedom	
D.	New Teachers	
E.	Professional Improvement	9
F.	National Board Certification	10
ARTICLE	VI: Teacher Employment & Salary Lane Movement	11
A.	Prior Experience Credit.	11
В.	Eligibility for Salary Step Advancement	11
C.	Approval of Courses for Salary Credit	11
D.	Transfer to Higher Salary Classification	13
E.	Individual Teacher Records	14
F.	Medical Examinations	
ARTICLE	VII: Teacher Assignment, Transfer & Promotion	14
A.	Assignment of New Teachers	
В.	Salary and Assignment Notices	
C.	Notices of Vacancies	15
D.	Qualification for Assignment.	16
E.	Salary of Temporary Appointees	
F.	New Positions	16
G.	Requests for Transfer	16
H.	Determination of Voluntary Transfers	
I.	Involuntary Transfer	

J.	Notices of Hiring and Transfer	17
K.	Coaching Positions	10
ARTICLE	vIII: Teacher Working Conditions	10
ARTICLE	IX: Association Rights	10
A.	Use of Buildings	10
B.	Faculty Bulletin Boards	10
C.	Interschool Mail and Mailboxes	10
D.	Association Space Use	10
E.	Use of Equipment	10
F.	Teaching Load of Association Officers	10
G.	Orientation Day	. 19
H.	reacher information Meeting	20
ARTICLE 2	X: Student Discipline & Teacher Protection.	20
ARTICLE 2	XI: Teaching Hours & Teaching Load	20
Α.	Guidelines for Secondary and Middle School Assignments.	22
В.	Guidelines for Elementary and Secondary School	22
C.	Guidelines for Elementary School Assignments	27
D.	School Hours.	28
E.	Attendance Record - Teachers	30
F.	Multiple Building Assignments of Teachers	31
G.	Response to Intervention (RtI) Meetings and Instructional Support Team (IST)	32
Meetin	gs:	20
Н.	Department Chairpersons and Liaison Teachers	32
I.	Job Description	34
ARTICLE X	III: Teacher Evaluation & Records.	35
A.	General Policies	36
В.	General Classroom Observation Procedures	37
D.	Notice of Tenure Denial	37
E.	Evaluation of Part-time and Tenured Teachers	39
F. 1	Review of Personnel File	39
G.]	Response to Derogatory Materials	39
Н.	Response to Derogatory Materials	10
I. (Teacher Discipline 4	10
	Complaints Against a Teacher 4	0
ARTICI F X	Report of Special Achievement	.0
A. S	III: Sick Leave	.1
B. S	Sick Leave	.1
ARTICI E Y	Sick Leave Bank 4	1
A. I	IV: Extended Leaves of Absence.	5
В. А	Leaves of Absence For Professional Association Officers 4	5
C. P	Association Attendance at Professional Meetings	5
	Peace Corps, Exchange Teacher and Similar Leaves	5
•	Child Care Leave 4	5
G. P	Personal Leave Without Pay	7
U. P	Public Office Leave of Absence 4	7
п. к	esumption of Benefits After Leave	8
I. R	equests for Extension of Leave	3 .
KIICLE X \	V: Temporary Leaves of Absence	3
A. Po	ersonal Leave	

В.	Public Obligations	49
C.	Serious Illness in Family or of Member of Household	49
D.	Death in the Immediate Family or of Member of Household	49
E.	Birth in the Family	49
F.	Definition of "Immediate Family"	49
Ğ.	Jury Duty and Court Attendance	
	E XVI: Non-Instructional Duties	50
A.	Assignment of Non-Instructional Duties	
В.	Rotation of Non-Instructional Duties	
C.	Meetings and School-Related Activities	
	E XVII: Student Teachers	
	E XVIII: Substitute Teachers	
Α.	Qualifications of Substitutes	
В.	Notice of Long-Term Substitutes	
C.	Salaries of Substitutes	
D.	Designated Per Diem Substitutes	
	E XIX: Insurance, Annuities & Retirement	
A.	Tax Sheltered Annuity	54
В.	Health Insurance	
C.	Benefit Trust	56
D.	Flexible Spending Plan	
E.	Unused Sick Leave Conversion	
F.	Death Benefits	58
G.	Part-Time Teachers	58
ARTICL	E XX: Summer School	58
ARTICL	E XXI: Job Description	59
	E XXII: School Calendar	
ARTICL	E XXIII: Reduction in Force	60
ARTICL	E XXIV: Board Rights	61
ARTICL	E XXV: Grievance Procedure	62
A.	Declaration of Purpose	62
В.	Definitions Used in Grievance Procedure	
C.	Procedures	62
D.	Time Limits	
E.	Stage 1: Building Principal	65
F.	Stage 2: Chief Executive Officer	65
G.	Stage 3: Arbitration	66
ARTICL	E XXVI: No-Strike Clause	
ARTICL	E XXVII: Miscellaneous Provisions	66
ARTICL	E XXVIII: Salaries & Salary Schedules	68
A.	Procedures for Administering the Schedules	68
В.	Salary Schedules	68
C.	Method of Payment	
D.	Longevity Increments	
E.	Adult Education	
F.	Tutorial	69
G.	Guidance Counselors and Psychologists	
H	Department Chairpersons and Chair/Liaisons	

I.	Salary Schedule for Summer School Employment	. 69
J.	Extra-Curricular Stipends	. 69
K.	Coaching Stipend Schedule	. 70
L.	Non-Instructional Duties	
M.	Chaperoning	.71
N.	Overnight Field Trips	. 71
O.	Tenure Award	.71
P.	Attendance Award	.71
Q.	International Baccalaureate (IB) Program Coordinator	.71
R.	Community Action Service (CAS) Coordinator	. 72
S.	Extended Essay (IBEE) Coordinator	
T.	Middle Years Program (MYP) Coordinator	
U.	IB MYP Personal Project	
V.	Instructional Specialists	

EXHIBIT SCHEDULES

EXHIBIT A - Provisional Time

EXHIBIT B - Extra-Curricular Clubs

EXHIBIT C – Interscholastic Sports

EXHIBIT D - Salary Schedules

EXHIBIT E – Other Compensation

AGREEMENT SIGNATURES

The Harrison Central School District, 50 Union Avenue, Harrison, New York 10528, does not discriminate on the basis of sex in the educational programs or activities which it operates, and it is required by Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972 not to discriminate in such a manner. This policy of non-discrimination includes the following areas: recruitment and appointment of employees, employment pay and benefits, and counseling services for students, access by students to educational programs, course offerings and student activities. The District Official responsible for the coordination of activities relating to compliance with Title IX is the Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources. Telephone Number: 914-835-3003. This Official will provide information, including compliance procedures to any student or employee, who feels that his/her rights under Title IX may have been violated by the District or its Officials.

PREAMBLE

The Board of Education of the Harrison Central School District is responsible for providing a quality education for students of this District. The Harrison Association of Teachers commits itself to the full support of this goal.

ARTICLE I: Recognition Agreement

A. Recognition Resolution

The Harrison Central School District Board of Education recognizes the Harrison Association of Teachers as the exclusive negotiating agent for all personnel certified as teachers, including part-time per diem teachers, substitute teachers, guidance counselors, psychologists, nurse teachers, librarians, department chairpersons, reading teachers, speech correctionists, art teachers, liaison teachers, music teachers, and basic skills instructors. The Harrison Association of Teachers does not represent any other employees of the District, including all supervisory and administrative personnel who may be certified teachers.

B. Duration

This Agreement shall be effective from July 1, 2019 and continue in effect through June 30, 2023 without exceptions.

C. Dues Deduction

- 1. The District agrees to deduct from the salaries of its teachers dues for the Harrison Association of Teachers as said teachers individually and voluntarily authorize the District to deduct and to transmit the monies promptly to said Association. Dues deduction authorizations will be in writing on a form agreed to by the Association and the District.
- 2. The Harrison Association of Teachers will certify to the District in writing the current rate of membership dues of the Association named in Section "A" above. The Association will give the District thirty (30) days written notice prior to the effective date of any change. Current dues authorization cards will remain valid unless specifically withdrawn in writing by the individual prior to September 15th of the then current school year. The Association will ensure that the District has dues deduction cards for each unit member.
- 3. Deductions referred to in Sections "1" and "2" above will be made beginning on or before October 15th. All changes or new authorizations for dues deductions shall be honored and become effective on the pay day next following the passage of thirty (30) days after receipt by the District. Monies deducted in accordance

with the foregoing shall be retroactive to September 1st of each school year, except for those teachers hired after September 1st.

- 4. The District will transfer to the Harrison Association of Teachers, within three (3) days of each bi-weekly deductions, all monies due it.
- 5. The Superintendent or his/her designee shall inform, in writing, the President of the Association of the hire, starting date, building assignment and job assignment of all new bargaining unit employees within ten (10) days of their initial hire.

D. Requirement of Legislative Approval

It is agreed by and between the parties that any provision of this agreement requiring legislative action to permit its implementation by amendment of the law or by providing the additional funds therefore, shall not become effective until the appropriate legislative body has given approval.

ARTICLE II: Definitions of Terms Used in This Agreement

The terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings set forth below:

- 1. "Association" means the Harrison Association of Teachers.
- 2. "School District" or "District" means Harrison Central School District, Harrison, New York.
- 3. "Board" or "Board of Education" means the trustees of the Harrison Central School District, Harrison, New York.
- 4. "Superintendent" or "Superintendent of School" so means the chief administrative officer of the District or his/her designee.
- 5. "School day" means the length of time teachers are to be in their assigned buildings.
- 6. "School year" means the time period defined by the Board of Education in accordance with state law for the commencement and conclusion of holding school.
- 7. "Promotional position" means any position paying a salary difference over the teachers' salary schedule or any position on the administrator-supervisor level, including but not limited to positions as assistant superintendent, administrative assistant, supervisor, director, principal, assistant principal, housemaster, department head, psychologist and guidance counselor.

- 8. "School term" means the period of time beginning in September and ending at approximately the midpoint in the school year, and the period beginning at the approximate midpoint in the academic year and extending to the end of the school year as set forth in the school calendar adopted for each school year.
- 9. "Teacher" means any member of the professional certified staff represented by the Harrison Association of Teachers and, unless otherwise indicated, employees in teachers negotiating unit will be hereinafter referred to as teacher(s).
- 10. "Academic subject" means English, history, mathematics, science and similar subjects included as part of the college preparatory requirements for students.
- 11. "Administrator" or "Administration," means those certified school district officials whose professional duties include those of a supervisory nature.
- 12. "Consultants" means persons employed on a per diem basis whose official duties include advising school personnel.

ARTICLE III: Negotiations

A. Procedures

The terms and conditions of employment provided in the Agreement shall remain in effect until altered by mutual agreement in writing between the parties.

B. Meetings for Negotiation Purposes

No later than January 15th of the year in which this Agreement expires, negotiations will be undertaken for a successor agreement.

C. Selection of Representatives

Neither party in any negotiations shall have any control over the selection of the negotiators or bargaining representatives of the other party and each party may select its representatives from within or outside the school district. While no final agreement shall be executed without ratification by the Association and the Board, the parties agree that their representatives will be authorized to make proposals, consider proposals and negotiate an agreement subject to ratification by the Board and the Association.

Negotiations shall be conducted by persons designated as representatives of the Board and representatives of the Association, except that any of the parties hereto may have legal counsel present and may at any time invite such other persons to the negotiation discussions as may reasonably be required to resolve a given issue.

D. Negotiation Meetings

- 1. Negotiation sessions shall be held at a time, place and date mutually agreed to by the parties.
- 2. In the event a negotiation meeting is held during part of a school day the members of the negotiating committee of the Association shall be released from their regular school duties without loss of pay. The Board shall provide adequate substitute teachers to cover any classes from which the teacher is excused for the purpose of negotiation.
- 3. In the event both parties agree, official summary minutes of the negotiations session shall be kept and the Board shall provide such assistance as may be necessary to record and maintain such minutes.

E. Impasse Procedure

In the event an impasse in negotiations occurs, the parties agree to follow the impasse procedures as set forth in Section 209 of the Taylor Law.

F. Study Committees for Negotiation Purposes

The parties may appoint joint study committees to research, study and develop projects, programs and reports and to make recommendation on matters under consideration or on those matters which may be considered in the negotiation process. Upon agreement of the parties, reports on current matters shall be shared with the designated representatives of both parties.

G. Availability of Budgetary and Statistical Information

The Board of Education will make available a copy of the District Budget to the Association at the same time said budget is made available to District residents. A copy of Form ST-3 "Annual Financial Report" will be made available to the Association upon request of the School District when completed.

H. Negotiation of Matters Not Specified

In the event of the establishment of a new position or subsequent changes that affect the wages, hours, or other terms and/or conditions of employment, (in areas for which the Association is recognized as bargaining agent), the Harrison Board of Education will first deliver notice in writing to the Association advising them of the changes being considered. The Association shall have the right to negotiate the wages and hours of employment related to these proposals.

The Association agrees to notify the Board in writing within ten (10) school days after receipt of said notice, of its desire to negotiate thereon.

If the Association does not demand negotiations within the period specified, then the Board may proceed to enact such policy in accordance with the notice previously served upon the Association. In the event that negotiations have been requested and should agreement between the parties not be reached, then the matter shall be referred to arbitration.

A. Negotiation with Other Organizations Prohibited

The Board agrees not to negotiate with any employee, employee group or organization other than the Association in regard to wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment of employees in the unit represented by the Association on any topic whatsoever affecting said employees during the term of this Agreement.

J. Maintenance of Standards

The parties agree to continue, during the term of this agreement, wages, hours and working conditions which are not otherwise provided for elsewhere in this agreement.

This clause shall not be interpreted so as to diminish the powers and duties of the Board of Education as set forth in Section 1709 of the New York State Education Law, except as may be provided elsewhere in this Agreement.

K. Fair Practices - Professional Teaching Personnel

The Association agrees to maintain its eligibility to represent all teachers by continuing to admit professionals to membership without discrimination on the basis of race, creed, color, age, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or marital status and to represent equally all employees without regard to membership or participation in, or association with the activities of any employee organization.

The Board also agrees to continue its policy of not discriminating against any employee on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin, sex or age.

ARTICLE IV: Teacher-Administration Liaison

A. HAT Representatives

- 1. HAT representative(s) may meet with the Building Principal once every two weeks or whenever mutually desirable during the school year to review and discuss local school problems and practices.
- 2. Each HAT representative, with the approval of the building principal, shall have the right to schedule Association meetings before or after school in his/her building.

- 3. The position of HAT representative shall be provided with a singular allocation of not less than ten minutes time at all building faculty meetings to report and discuss Association matters. In general, no faculty meeting will exceed one hour and ten minutes.
- 4. The HAT representatives shall be allowed free time during school hours each week to perform their duties under this Agreement, provided that during such time they have no class assigned to them. They will refrain from interrupting class in progress.

B. Mentor/Intern Program

The Board and the Association agree that a committee of teachers and administrators will meet at least annually to review the mentor teacher program and recommend any changes to the program.

ARTICLE V: Professional Development, Educational Improvement & Academic Freedom

A. Professional Development

Each school year, each unit member shall perform twenty (20) hours of professional development after school. Said hours shall be utilized in assignments made by the administration in the following areas: staff development, conferences, attendance at District provided in-service courses, and any other category of staff development assignments mutually agreed upon by the Superintendent and the President of the Association.

- 1. In implementing the foregoing, the administration shall announce on or before May 15th a schedule of specific activities for utilization of professional development time during the following school year. The staff shall have the opportunity to make alternative suggestions to the Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction until June 15th. On or before June 30th, the Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction shall respond in writing to the suggested alternatives. The Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction's decision to accept or reject the alternative activity shall be final. As a part of professional development calendar planning process between the District and the Association, the District shall schedule two (2) make-up days (one in the fall and one in the spring) for after-school professional development sessions that are cancelled due to school closure or early dismissal.
- 2. In the event the scheduled activities established pursuant to Article V.A above, are not made available to teachers, teachers shall have the discretion in determining

how to utilize this scheduled professional development time, for their professional development responsibilities.

- 3. At the request of the administration, the Association may consent to the extension of the May 15th deadline to May 30th.
- 4. The elementary level (K-5) professional development sessions, as described herein, shall begin twenty-five (25) minutes after the end of the school day and shall continue for one (1) hour and forty five (45) minutes. The twenty-five (25) minutes between the end of the school day and the start of professional development is inclusive of travel time between elementary schools.
- 5. At the secondary level (6-12), professional development sessions shall be two (2) full hours, not including travel time between the middle school and the high school. When six (6) twelve (12) teachers meet together for professional development sessions, those sessions shall occur at the middle school. Further, when professional development sessions are specific to grades six (6) eight (8) or nine (9) twelve (12), professional development sessions shall begin ten (10) minutes after the end of the school day, and the professional development session shall be two (2) full hours.
- 6. Effective with the 2020-21 school year and thereafter, the District may schedule four (4) of the ten (10) after school professional development sessions for K-12 fine and performing arts, physical education, and ENL teachers so that the professional development sessions start at 3:30 PM and continue for two (2) hours. Any time that 6-12 teachers spend waiting for these professional development sessions to begin may be counted toward their provisional time requirement.

B. Professional Workshops, Conferences, and Visitations

- 1. Teachers shall be encouraged to attend workshops, conferences, and conventions. In addition, teachers shall be encouraged to visit notable programs in other schools districts as a means of professional improvement.
- 2. A total of two hundred twenty-five (225) school days shall be provided each year for purpose noted above. Such days shall be pooled for the entire teaching staff and distributed equitably. However, no teacher shall be permitted to use more than three (3) school days to attend workshops, conferences and conventions in a school year. The Superintendent shall have the discretion to authorize additional days to be granted to teachers to visit notable programs both within the school district and/or other school districts as a means of professional improvement.
- 3. The Board agrees to pay substitutes' salaries thus necessitated and reasonable expenses including fees, meals, lodging, and transportation incurred by teachers attending such professional conferences according to the provisions set forth in

the District's travel reimbursement policy, which is available from the Business Office.

- 4. The Board will pay each teacher his/her regular salary while absent in connection with attendance at such sessions.
- 5. A teacher may, with the approval as stated above, attend such professional improvement sessions at his/her own expense.
- 6. An individual who holds office in a professional organization, or who has a key role to play on a convention program will have special consideration given to his/her request to attend the conference. Such special consideration will be limited to two (2) conferences approved in any given year and further shall be limited to two (2) consecutive years.
- 7. In approving requests for such professional improvement sessions, preference shall be given to those applicants who have not attended such sessions within the previous two (2) school years except as indicated in item six (6) above.
- 8. The following criteria is to be used in regard to approval for professional improvement sessions:
 - a) The content of the session must be within the current teaching area and will benefit students in the teacher's current assignment.
 - b) The session must be sponsored by a recognized educational organization.
 - c) The number of teachers applying for a particular session.
 - d) Attendance at the session is deemed to be of value to the improvement of education within the district.
- 9. If attendance at professional improvement sessions is denied, reasons for the denial must be given in writing.

C. Academic Freedom

The Board of Education and the Harrison Association of Teachers affirm that academic freedom has been and shall continue to be guaranteed to all teachers in this district.

The private and personal life of the teacher shall remain outside the province of the appropriate concern or attention of the Board, provided that a teacher's action does not interfere with the teacher's assigned duties, responsibilities and relationships with the students and the School District.

D. New Teachers

- 1. The Board shall provide a program of education designed to assist new teachers to adjust to the school system.
- 2. The Association shall be informed of any program provided to improve the orientation of new teachers to the school system.

E. Professional Improvement

- 1. The parties support the principle of continuing training of teachers, participation by teachers in professional organizations in the areas of their specialization, leaves for work on advanced degrees or special studies and participation in community education projects. The Board may authorize teachers to participate in similar programs offered outside of the District.
- 2. a) Teachers appointed to conduct in-service training courses, workshops, etc., during the contractual work day (i.e., during regular school hours, professional development meetings associated with the twenty (20) hour professional development requirement, and Superintendent Conference Days) shall receive no additional compensation to conduct said in-service training. However, notwithstanding the foregoing, for teacher-developed in-service courses or workshops, teachers will be paid for one (1) hour of preparation at the curriculum writing rate for every one (1) hour they deliver professional development training. In the event a teacher delivers the same workshop a second time or thereafter, the rate will be one (1) hour of preparation at the curriculum writing rate for every two (2) hours of training delivery.
 - b) Teachers appointed to conduct in-service courses and workshops that occur outside of the work day shall be paid at the conducting in-service training rate as specified in Exhibit E, and will be paid for one (1) hour of preparation at the curriculum writing rate for every one (1) hour they deliver professional development training. In the event a teacher delivers the same workshop a second time or thereafter, the rate will be one (1) hour of preparation at the curriculum writing rate for every two (2) hours of training/delivery.
 - when teachers co-lead professional development in-service workshops, they shall each receive the contractual stipend if the total number of enrollees in the workshop is eighteen (18) or greater. In the event the total number of enrollees is fewer than eighteen (18), the teachers co-leading the professional development in-service workshop shall split the contractual stipend as set forth in Section E(2)(a) and E(2)(b) of this Article. Enrollment of the inservice workshop shall be determined based on the total number of enrollees as of twenty-four (24) hours before the start of the workshop. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District reserves the discretion to pay each of the two presenters a full stipend for in-service workshops with fewer

than eighteen (18) enrollees, as may be appropriate for the topic and delivery of the workshop.

- 3. The Association herewith acknowledges that teachers may be called upon, and it is a part of teachers' professional responsibility to, facilitate meetings and share professional practice without additional compensation during the contractual workday (i.e., during regular school hours, professional development meetings associated with the twenty (20) hour professional development requirement, and Superintendent Conference Days).
- 4. Teachers may propose the creation of study groups to occur outside of the contractual workday. Study groups may run for a duration of fifteen (15) or thirty (30) hours, subject to the approval of the Superintendent and/or his designee. Study groups will range in size from six (6) participants (minimum) to twelve (12) participants (maximum) per group (plus the study group facilitator). A teacher who serves as a study group facilitator shall receive one in-service credit (for a fifteen [15] hour course) or two in-service credits (for a thirty [30] hour course) for participating in the study group. Additionally, the study group facilitator shall receive the conducting in-service training rate on a 1:2 basis (i.e., for a fifteen [15] hour study group, the facilitator will receive seven and one-half [7.5] hours at the in-service training rate as specified in Exhibit E). teachers volunteer to share the responsibilities of serving as the study group facilitator, they shall both receive the applicable in-service credit as participants, but shall each receive one-half (1/2) of the study group facilitator stipend. The role of the facilitator(s) includes developing outcomes for the study group, scheduling meeting times, outlining meeting agendas, facilitating discussions, and interfacing with the administrative liaison.

F. National Board Certification

- 1. Teachers completing the necessary requirements for National Board Certification (NBC) by the National Board for Professional Teaching Standards are entitled to the following compensation levels:
 - a. \$500 stipend upon completing the necessary requirements to be NBC
 - b. \$500 stipend upon receiving the NBC from the National Board for Professional Teaching Standards
 - c. \$500 upon renewing NBC
- 2. Prior to being eligible for the aforementioned stipends, the Association members must provide appropriate documentation to the Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources authenticating their standing with NBC.

ARTICLE VI: Teacher Employment & Salary Lane Movement

A. Prior Experience Credit

- 1. The District will determine step and placement to be proffered to teachers at the time of hire. The District will also provide the newly hired teacher with notice identifying additional credit hours, if any, that will be recognized for subsequent column movement.
- 2. Upon initial employment, experience credit for "active" military service will be given, but not exceed two (2) years.
- 3. Once experience credit has been granted, it will not later be diminished.

B. Eligibility for Salary Step Advancement

Teachers must have been actively employed for at least five (5) full months during the year immediately preceding the date for award of step increment to be eligible for step increment the next following school year. Part time employees who meet this five (5) month requirement will receive an increment during the next following school year.

C. Approval of Courses for Salary Credit

- 1. Teachers will receive salary credit for completed graduate and in-service study, provided such study has the prior approval of the Administration. Individual teachers, who desire to take a graduate or in-service course for salary credit, are required to complete the request form using My Learning Plan on the District's website. To be eligible for salary credit, approval for each course must be obtained from the appropriate administrator(s) in advance and prior to course registration. Upon the submission of a complete request for approval, the applicant will be informed of the determination of the Superintendent or his designee via My Learning Plan within ten (10) days of the date of submission and, in the event the request is denied, the denial will be accompanied by reasons for the denial.
- 2. Action on course requests will be taken on the basis of demonstrable relationship of course(s) requested to:
 - a. Teaching Area the tenure area and assignment of current teacher employment.
 - b. Next higher degree Masters', Certificate of Advanced Study (sixth [6th] year), Doctorate in tenure area and assignment of current teacher employment.
 - c. No credit will be granted for a graduate or in-service course which is a duplicate of a previously completed course.

- 3. Teachers may submit proposals to complete independent studies toward in-service credit. Such proposals must include a detailed rationale for the independent study to be completed, the goals and activities associated with the independent study, the proposed number of hours and timeframe involved, the number of in-service credits sought, the relevance and benefit to the teacher's classroom practice, and the evidence that will demonstrate proof of completion of the independent study. The approval of such requests shall be at the sole discretion of the District. In the event an independent study proposal is denied, the reasons for the denial shall be provided to the teacher in writing within ten (10) days of the submission. Upon completion of a pre-approved independent study for in-service credit, the teacher shall submit documentation to demonstrate proof of completion as specified in the proposal to his/her supervisor. Upon review and verification of the proof of completion, the supervisor shall issue a letter to the teacher verifying that the independent study has been completed and the number of pre-approved in-service credits specified in the proposal to be issued by the District. A copy of said letter shall be placed in the teacher's personnel file. No partial credit for partial completion of an independent study shall be issued.
- 4. Prior Superintendent approval or rejection of courses shall not be a determinant in the subsequent approval or rejection of courses. Each course shall be evaluated individually.
- 5. All approved graduate courses or in-service study will be given full credit toward salary, if taken in point of time, after the awarding of the highest degree possessed by the teacher. Notwithstanding the foregoing, teachers on the Bachelors' schedule may bank in-service courses taken prior to the award of a Master's degree for future column movement. These courses shall be limited to those that are sponsored by the district, and/or approved by the Superintendent. Undergraduate credits may be applicable toward salary scale advancement if prior approval, in writing, is obtained from the Superintendent of Schools. Such approval shall be solely at his/her discretion.
- 6. In-service courses offered by the District or other agencies, will be given credit upon successful completion of each course. One credit will be awarded for each fifteen (15) hours of study.
- 7. A maximum of fifteen (15) approved and earned credits will be applied to salary advancement each year (September 1st through August 31st). Credits earned in excess of fifteen (15) may be held and applied to future salary advancement.
 - Effective September 1, 2013, teachers shall be permitted to make no more than one (1) salary lane change every two (2) school years. Teachers shall be permitted to bank pre-approved and completed graduate and in-service credits for subsequent salary lane changes, according to the provisions set forth herein.

- 8. Effective July 1, 2019, in order to be eligible for lane movement the employee must successfully complete either nine (9) graduate and six (6) in-service credits or fifteen (15) District sponsored in-service credits. Any approved in-service credits taken outside HCSD shall only be applicable for salary advancement if they are combined with at least nine (9) approved graduate credits and no more than six (6) in-service credits.
- 9. Once teachers reach MA+75 they shall receive payment for up to fifteen (15) preapproved and completed graduate or in-service credits every two (2) school years. Payment for said credits shall be made at the contractual rate in effect at the time of payment, and teachers shall be permitted to bank credits beyond fifteen (15) within the two (2) year period for payment during the subsequent two (2) year period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, teachers who have reached MA+75 shall be required to submit proof of course completion for any in-service or graduate coursework and a claim form seeking compensation or reimbursement for said course work no later than September 30th following the school year in which the course is completed. Failure to do so shall result in a waiver of any and all claims for payment.

D. Transfer to Higher Salary Classification

- 1. Candidates for transfer to a higher salary classification are responsible for filing an "Application for Salary Schedule Advancement" form, which is available in the Principal's Office of all District schools.
- 2. Candidates for transfer to a higher salary classification are responsible for furnishing the Human Resources Office with proof of satisfactory completion of approved courses or degrees. Only official college or university transcripts, or provider certification of in-service credit, shall be accepted by the Human Resources Office as proof of course completion.
- 3. Salary adjustments arising from all column advancement, including but not limited to movement to the MA or PhD columns upon the acquisition of the requisite degree, will be made effective on September 1st for course work, or degree conferral, completed prior to such date provided an "Application for Salary Schedule Advancement" form, official transcripts and other pertinent evidence has been submitted to the Human Resources office on or before the preceding August 1st. In the event the teacher is unable to submit official transcripts and other pertinent evidence to the Human Resources office on or before August 1st, if the same are submitted on or before the next November 15th the salary adjustment will be made retroactive to September 1st.
- 4. Salary adjustments arising from the all column advancement, including but not limited to movement to the MA or PhD columns upon the acquisition of the requisite degree, will be made effective on February 1st for course work, or degree conferral, completed prior to such date provided an "Application for Salary

Schedule Advancement" form, official transcripts and other pertinent evidence has been submitted to the Human Resources Office on or before the following April 15th. The salary adjustment will be made retroactive to February 1st.

E. Individual Teacher Records

The Human Resources Office will maintain all teacher records relating to study, salary classification and certification. It is the responsibility of teachers to furnish a copy of all teaching certificates held to the Human Resources Office.

F. Medical Examinations

1. The Superintendent, with approval of the Board, may request a medical examination of a teacher be made by the School District physician at any time. The reasons for such request shall be given to the teacher in writing. The teacher required to submit to such medical examination shall be entitled to be accompanied by a physician or other person of his/her own choice. The Board shall pay up to the following amounts for expenses incurred by the teacher relating to the above examination:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$71
2020-21	\$71
2021-22	\$71
2022-23	\$71

ARTICLE VII: Teacher Assignment, Transfer & Promotion

A. Assignment of New Teachers

The Superintendent shall assign all newly hired personnel to the tenure areas for which the teacher has been hired by the Board. The Superintendent shall give notice of assignments to new teachers as soon after hiring as practicable.

B. Salary and Assignment Notices

- 1. Teachers will be notified of their salary for the coming school year within thirty (30) days after salaries for the next school year have been agreed upon in writing by the parties hereto. Teachers will be notified in writing of their salary on or before August 1st in any year for which salaries have been agreed upon by the parties hereto.
- 2. No later than May 1st preference sheets will be issued to teachers to be used in making assignments for the next school year. The District will solicit teacher preferences to indicate if they prefer to co-teach or not, and these preference

sheets shall be available to, and considered by, District administrators when making assignments. Teacher assignment preferences shall not be binding, and the District reserves the discretion to determine teacher assignments.

- 3. No later than June 1st returning teachers will be notified in writing by the building principal of their tentative assignments for the following year, including the schools to which they will be assigned, the grade(s) and/or subject(s) they will teach and any atypical class(es) they will have for the coming school year.
- 4. No later than August 1st, returning teachers will be notified in writing by the building principal of their actual assignments for the coming school year. If, by August 1st, there remains the possibility of a schedule change for an individual teacher or if after August 1st a schedule change must be made due to reasons beyond the control of the district, said teacher shall be advised in writing within seven (7) days regarding the problems involved.
- 5. By the first day of the school year, all returning elementary teachers shall be notified in writing by the building principal or appropriate administrator of their actual daily schedule. All support personnel shall have their schedule in place by the Monday of the first full week of school.

C. Notices of Vacancies

1. Notices for promotional and administrative positions shall be posted at least fifteen (15) days before the final date set forth on the notice for submission of applications. This notice shall set forth a description of the qualifications including training and experience for the position and shall include the duties and salary range.

The position shall not be permanently filled until after the final date for the submission of applications. This paragraph shall not apply for the position of Superintendent or Assistant Superintendent.

2. Any teacher desiring a change in assignment or a promotional position shall file a written statement requesting such change with the Superintendent not later than April 1st of the school year preceding the requested change. Teachers must submit their names and an address where they can be reached during the summer vacation period. Such application for transfer shall remain active for a three (3) year period.

When a vacancy occurs either during the school year or during the summer months, the School District shall notify the Association. The Association shall receive a copy of transfer requests and lists of openings from the Superintendent. The Association will notify all teachers involved.

- 3. Any teachers who have not registered and who desire to apply for such vacancy shall submit their applications in writing to the Superintendent within the time limits specified in the notice.
- 4. Openings for regular teaching positions, summer school, extra-curricular activities, tutorial, non-instructional duties, and evening positions, and for positions under special programs, will be posted at least ten (10) days before the final date set forth on the notice for submission of applications. This notice will set forth a description of all the qualifications, including training and experience for the positions and will include the duties and salary range.
- 5. Nothing in the contract shall be construed to require the Board of Education to hire a member of this bargaining unit for a position, promotional or otherwise, which is not represented by this bargaining unit.
- 6. The District shall post all promotional, administrative or regular teaching positions on the District's website.

D. Qualification for Assignment

Appointments and assignments to vacancies and openings within the bargaining unit shall be given to qualified persons. In making appointments and assignments, rotation and equitable distribution of such appointments and assignments may be considered. In the event that there are no qualified applicants from the bargaining unit for posted positions, as determined by the Superintendent, the administration may make appointments to such posted positions within the bargaining unit from outside the unit. Assignments shall be made without regard to age, sex, race, creed, color, nationality, marital status or ancestry, and every unsuccessful applicant who is an existing employee of the Board will be advised of the filling of the vacancy as soon as possible.

E. Salary of Temporary Appointees

Any temporary appointees to any and all promotional positions will receive the salary normally paid for such positions.

F. New Positions

The provisions hereof shall apply to new positions within the bargaining unit created within the school system, as well as vacancies occurring in existing positions within the bargaining unit in accordance with previous training and experience.

G. Requests for Transfer

A teacher requesting a transfer to a vacant teaching position shall receive an interview before that position is filled. In February of each school year, teachers may volunteer for transfer. The District will make the best effort to honor such requests before contemplating any involuntary transfers. If the request for such transfer is not honored, the Superintendent (or his/her designee) will provide the reasons in writing within 15 school days after the interview. Any grievance can go no further than the Chief Executive Officer stage.

H. Determination of Voluntary Transfers

In the determination of requests for voluntary reassignments and/or transfers involving positions within the bargaining unit, the wishes of the individual teacher will be considered so long as, in the determination of the Superintendent, the best interests of the school system are served by such a reassignment and/or transfer. If there are two or more qualified volunteers the Superintendent shall determine which individual's request will be honored, if any, based upon the best interest of the school system. Any grievance of the denial of such a voluntary request can go no further than the Chief Executive Officer stage.

I. Involuntary Transfer

- 1. A transfer for purposes of this provision shall be solely defined as the reassignment from one building to another.
- 2. Notice of transfer shall be given as soon as practicable and if possible, not later than June 1st.
- 3. A teacher's areas of competence, major field of study, quality of teaching performance and length of service in the school system will be considered in determining which teacher is to be transferred. An involuntary transfer or reassignment will be made only after a meeting between the teacher involved, a representative of the Association, if requested by the teacher, the Principal involved, and the Superintendent, at which time the teacher will be notified of the reason thereof. In the event that a teacher is dissatisfied with the changed assignment, the administration upon due notification, will make a good faith effort to find an acceptable position for said teacher, subject to the preservation of the best educational conditions.
- 4. The District will not involuntarily transfer any teacher more than two (2) times within five (5) school years.

J. Notices of Hiring and Transfer

On or before September 1st of each school year, the Superintendent will deliver to the Association a list showing the names of all teachers who have been hired, reassigned, transferred or promoted. The list will include the names and addresses of every new teacher hired in the school system.

K. Coaching Positions

1. Appointment Procedures

Appointments to coaching positions shall be made by the Board of Education upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools.

2. Notification for either new or open coaching positions shall be sent by email and posted on the District's website. Postings for these positions shall be made on or before the dates listed below:

November 10th for Spring coaching positions February 10th for Fall coaching positions May 10th for Winter coaching positions.

ARTICLE VIII: Teacher Working Conditions

- A. The Board agrees to provide the following personal facilities for teachers:
 - 1. Adequately lighted, heated, ventilated and cleaned teacher rest rooms, separate for each sex and separate from the students' rest rooms.
 - 2. A dining area and teachers' room for use of teachers.
 - 3. A parking area with a portion reserved for teacher parking, if such parking area is available.
 - 4. Special clothing and equipment whenever required by teachers in technology, art, science and life and careers.
 - 5. A two week supply of expendables as requested by the teacher shall be in the teacher's room prior to the first day of school.
 - 6. If at any time it becomes necessary to change or modify budgets for supplies (whether approved or not) every effort will be made to give the teacher the opportunity to suggest priorities.
 - 7. The District shall provide private areas in each building for teachers to make confidential phone calls. At the Middle School and High School, there shall be at least two (2) such areas.

In addition, the District shall provide private areas in each building equipped with public telephones for the sole use of the faculty and staff.

B. Each building in which teachers perform their duties shall have at least one (1) room permanently designated as "Teachers' Room." Teachers shall be able to use this room while studying, preparing for classes, eating lunch or relaxing. The use of this room shall be unencumbered by such special services as psychological testing or conferences, parent conferences, and workshops or meetings during the school day.

ARTICLE IX: Association Rights

A. Use of Buildings

The Association will have the right to use school buildings including office space if available, without charge at reasonable times of any day or evening for its meetings and other business, provided that such will not conflict with previously scheduled school events or create an additional cost.

B. Faculty Bulletin Boards

There will be faculty bulletin boards in each school building in the school system for the exclusive use of the Association. At least one (1) faculty bulletin board will be installed in each new building. No organization representing or purporting to represent employees in the employer-employee unit represented by the Association shall have the use of the bulletin boards and/or the school internal communication facilities except the Association and its affiliates.

C. Interschool Mail and Mailboxes

The Association shall be allowed the use of interschool mail facilities and faculty mailboxes for official Association business.

D. Association Space Use

The Association may be provided a room in the school system, subject to approval of the Board and when space permits. Phone installation and service costs will be paid by the Association.

E. Use of Equipment

The Association shall be charged the District's actual cost of the paper used for photocopying and printing all Association material.

F. Teaching Load of Association Officers

Effective July 1, 2003, the President's release time shall be increased to a full time equivalent of .6 of a teacher work day. Effective the September prior to commencement of negotiations for a successor collective bargaining agreement, said release time will be

increased by an additional .2 of a teacher work day. Said additional time shall terminate coincident with the end of the school year in which settlement occurs.

The Association shall have the right to divide the current release time permitted other Association officials (0.4 FTEs), provided that it is not used to increase the Association President's release time.

G. Orientation Day

- 1. The Association officers and representatives shall have the right to appear and speak to new teachers during New Teacher Orientation.
- 2. The Association officers and representatives shall have the right to appear and speak for a period of one (1) hour at the end of the first or second day of Superintendent's Conference days held immediately prior to the arrival of students in September.

The Superintendent of Schools shall make a reasonable effort to allow for this time to occur on a day in which teachers are all centrally located in one building.

- i. In the event the Association addresses teaching staff on a date in which the teachers are centrally located, the teachers shall be released at 2:00pm to attend the Association's meeting.
- ii. In the event the Association addresses teaching staff on a date in which the teachers are not centrally located, the teachers shall be released for travel time in order for the teachers to arrive at their meeting by 2:00pm, in accordance with the provisions set forth in Article XI, §F(3).
- iii. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties herewith acknowledge that the Superintendent shall have the sole discretion to determine which of the two (2) Superintendent Conference Days the Association will address the staff.
- 3. The Superintendent of Schools shall note the Association meetings on the Superintendent Conference Day Agenda and the New Teacher Orientation Day Agenda.

H. Teacher Information Meeting

The Association officers and its representatives will be permitted the right to inform teachers of their rights under the Taylor Law at a scheduled meeting each year.

ARTICLE X: Student Discipline & Teacher Protection

1. The Board recognizes the responsibility to give all reasonable support and assistance to teachers with respect to the maintenance of control and discipline in the school district.

When in the judgment of the Board, a particular pupil requires special attention, the Board will take prompt action with respect to such pupil.

- 2. Teachers agree to support the regulations and policy as enacted by the Board with respect to student discipline in order to promote effective education in Harrison. The Board agrees to uniformly and equitably adhere to its policies.
- 3. All discipline of students shall be effectuated in such a way as to be in compliance with the mandates of Project Save and the District's Code of Conduct.
- 4. Suspension of students from school may be imposed by the Board or its designee. When, in the judgment of the Association and the teacher, suspension is warranted but not undertaken, the Association may submit a grievance and pursue the grievance up to the Chief Executive Officer stage only. It is understood that decisions of the Chief Executive Officer relating to discipline are not arbitrable.
- 5. In case of assault upon a teacher in the performance of duties the teacher shall promptly report the assault to the Building Principal and to the Association. The Board will provide legal counsel to advise the teacher of his/her rights and obligations with respect to such assault and shall render all reasonable assistance to the teacher in connection with handling of the incident by law enforcement and judicial authorities.
- 6. The terms of paragraphs "3" and "4" above are not arbitrable and, accordingly, any grievance relating thereto can go no further than the Chief Executive Officer stage.
- 7. Whenever a teacher is temporarily absent from school because of an injury caused by an accident or assault occurring in the course of his/her employment, the teacher's sick leave shall be utilized until workers' compensation claim is approved as a compensable injury and the District is reimbursed for the teacher's absences, at which time sick days shall be reinstated to the teacher.
- 8. a) The Board will reimburse teachers in an amount not to exceed:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$350
2020-21	\$350
2021-22	\$350
2022-23	\$350

toward the cost of repairing or replacing any clothing or other personal appurtenance or property damaged or destroyed as a result of an assault suffered by the teacher while in the performance of his/her duty. The articles for which reimbursement will be made are those which are normally worn or brought into school. If the article is not normally worn or brought into school, reimbursement will only be made if the article has been brought into school with the permission of the building principal.

- b) Should the teacher recover for such loss from any insurance or other source, then to the extent that such recovery, when added to Board's payment mentioned above, exceeds the amount of claimed loss, such excess, up to the amount originally received from the Board, will be returned to the Board, by the teacher.
- 9. No administrator shall reprimand or demean a teacher in front of colleagues, students or parents. Nor shall any teacher reprimand or demean an administrator in front of colleagues, students or parents.
- 10. Time lost by a teacher in connection with the investigation of any incident mentioned in this Article shall not be charged against the teacher.

ARTICLE XI: Teaching Hours & Teaching Load

- A. Guidelines for Secondary and Middle School Assignments
 - 1. A preparation or lunch period should be scheduled after no more than three (3) consecutive teaching periods. The building administrator shall make every effort to insure that no teacher is scheduled for more than four (4) consecutive assignment periods. In the event a teacher voluntarily accepts a 6th assignment, it may be necessary to assign said teacher to four (4) teaching periods in a row, and such schedule may be a condition of accepting a 6th assignment.
 - 2. The number of room changes required of a teacher should be held to a maximum of two (2). If it becomes necessary to place a teacher in three (3) different rooms, a written explanation shall be given to the teacher. No teacher shall be required without his/her consent to teach in three (3) different rooms in consecutive school years.
 - 3. The number of different lesson preparations should be kept at the minimum consistent with the nature of the subject, the size of the department, the special offerings of the department, and special competencies and requests of the teacher.
 - 4. The number of pupils assigned to rooms of a specified limited capacity should not exceed the number of pupil stations available.
- 5. a) All teachers (6-12) will be given five (5) assignments each day which may include any combination of class teaching or non-instructional duties. At the secondary level (grades 6-12), speech pathologists shall provide speech services five (5) periods per day and may be assigned, if needed, one (1) additional period per day to complete student testing without additional compensation. Speech pathologists at the secondary level shall be exempt from serving a non-instructional duty. In addition, secondary speech pathologists shall be exempt from fulfilling thirty (30) of the professional duty periods that may be otherwise

directed by the District and they shall be exempt from fulfilling twenty (20) of the professional duty periods that may be self-directed by the speech pathologist. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a speech pathologist is assigned a 6th assignment, he/she will not be required to devote an extra period per day (beyond the 6 periods) to complete testing without additional compensation.

b) Each teacher will be assigned by District Administrators to ninety (90) professional periods annually. During the remaining self-directed ninety (90) periods annually, teachers are required to participate in those professional activities hereinafter listed.

Utilization of the professional period shall include but not be limited to: team meetings; co-planning meetings; grade-level meetings; department meetings; meetings with the principal, assistant principal, and/or supervisors; meetings with the Superintendent or his designee; curriculum planning/mapping¹ meetings; parent conferences (may also be held during preparation periods, in extenuating circumstances); pre-and post-observation conferences (may also be held during preparation periods in extenuating circumstances); CSE meetings; CST meetings; IEP writing and/or professional development.

In the event teacher(s) participate in pre-approved curriculum writing projects to develop curriculum for a new course or contribute to district-initiated revisions to curriculum outside of the school day, the district shall compensate teachers at the negotiated hourly rate for curriculum writing.

Each teacher shall be involved in the aforesaid activities during the self-directed professional periods. Teachers shall maintain an accurate representation of their professional activities during said professional period.

c) Additionally, all teachers (6-12) will be given an assignment, non-instructional in nature, without additional compensation for one (1) semester or its equivalent for each school year. At the high school level, the District may seek volunteers who wish to fulfill their non-instructional duty requirement (i.e., one period per day for one semester) by supervising an academic support center to provide students with extra help during student lunch periods. All teachers who are additionally compensated for a voluntary sixth (6th) assignment may also be assigned a non-instructional duty period for one (1) semester each school year. Non-instructional duties means hallway duty, lunch duty, study hall duty or other non-instructional

¹ Curriculum planning/mapping may include teachers working independently or with colleagues to work on a lesson or unit; discuss/identify instructional resources that can be used within a lesson or unit; discuss/identify instructional strategies to be included in a lesson or unit; develop common formative or summative assessments for a unit, course, or grade level; or revise a curriculum map to plot the content, skills, and assessments for a unit, course, or grade level. It is expressly agreed that curriculum writing may be assigned to teachers to complete during provisional time, professional development time, and/or professional duty time without additional compensation. Any curriculum writing completed outside of the contractual work day or during the summer shall be compensated at the curriculum writing rate.

duties as set forth below or as mutually agreed upon otherwise. Where the administration determines that the appointment of teachers as hallway coordinators is the method it wishes to use to maintain order in the halls it may appoint teachers who volunteer to serve as hallway coordinators above and beyond their one (1) semester sixth (6^{th}) assignment referred to above. A teacher appointed as a hallway coordinator shall receive a stipend in the following amounts per semester for non-lunch periods:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$1,999
2020-21	\$2,024
2021-22	\$2,049
2022-23	\$2,075

During lunch periods, the stipend for hallway coordinator shall be:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$2,396
2020-21	\$2,426
2021-22	\$2,457
2022-23	\$2,487

d) Lunchroom supervision will be a paid voluntary duty available to teachers who only have five (5) assignments that semester. Two (2) teachers shall be employed for each student lunch period. Each teacher shall receive the following amounts per semester for this voluntary duty:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$2,396
2020-21	\$2,426
2021-22	\$2,457
2022-23	\$2,487

If there are insufficient qualified volunteers in a building, then lunchroom supervision during student lunch periods shall be rotated so that no teacher has this assignment for more than ten (10) weeks per school year. Each teacher thus appointed shall receive one-half (1/2) of the per semester stipend amount per ten (10) weeks. The remaining portion of the semester or its equivalent shall be in another non-instructional assignment as set forth in the contract.

i. Whenever it is necessary to replace a voluntary lunchroom supervisor, the principal may assign any substitute teacher to such duty, provided the substitute teacher has no more than five (5)

assignments that day and the duty-free lunch period is in no way diminished.

ii. The substitute teacher shall receive:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$9.58
2020-21	\$9.70
2021-22	\$9.82
2022-23	\$9.94

iii. For each occasion, beyond the maximum of five (5), that it is necessary to replace a voluntary lunchroom supervisor, the following amount shall be deducted from that teacher's contractual stipend:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$9.58
2020-21	\$9.70
2021-22	\$9.82
2022-23	\$9.94

- e) All teachers shall be in their building at least five (5) minutes before the first period begins. Teachers with a first period class shall be in their rooms at least five (5) minutes before the time that students are scheduled to arrive.
- f) Substantial changes in the time of teacher arrival and departure may be made upon consultation with the Association. Such changes shall not alter the length of the school day which is six (6) hours and twenty-five (25) minutes for the elementary schools and six (6) hours and fifty (50) minutes for secondary schools except as elsewhere provided in this agreement. The length of the school day, stated herein, shall include the five (5) minutes referenced in paragraph "d" above.
- g) In the event that ten percent (10%) or more of the classroom teachers in a building are absent and a substitute has not been obtained, teachers who have five (5) assignments that semester may be assigned to cover the class of an absent teacher during one of their preparation periods. Said teacher will be compensated in the following amounts per period:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$25.56
2020-21	\$25.88
2021-22	\$26.21
2022-23	\$26.53

Volunteers will be given first consideration. No teacher who has a first period preparation period shall be assigned this duty more than five (5) times per school year.

- 6. a) Class enrollments shall not exceed average limits (twenty-eight [28] in the high school) except for given exigencies that may arise. In the Middle School total class enrollments may exceed by twenty (20) the number arrived at by multiplying the number of sections by twenty-five (25). This provision shall not preclude large class instruction in social sciences, humanities, physical education, nor preclude experimentation, innovation, etc. with corresponding numbers of teachers, where educationally desirable. This provision shall not apply to performing groups of less than sixty (60) students per teacher per class. A teacher aide shall be provided for performing groups above sixty (60) students per teacher per class period.
 - b) Physical Education teachers shall have no more than one hundred sixty (160) students per day with a maximum of not more than thirty-five (35) students in any one class. Physical Education classes wherever possible should be homogeneous in grade level.
 - c) Teachers of English in the High School shall have no more than one hundred twenty (120) students per day. In the event of a double period class, each student will only be counted once.
 - d) Class size shall be a continuing concern of both the Board and the Association.
- 7. Homeroom duties should be assigned when feasible only to those teachers whose specialized duties will not conflict with homeroom responsibilities.
- 8. The pupil-teacher ratio is an important aspect of an effective educational program, the parties agree that class size shall be within the following ranges:

	Average	Maximum
High School	22-28	28-32
Middle School	22-24	25

Every effort shall be made to equalize the class sizes within the respective categories.

9. Teachers shall be allowed an uninterrupted duty-free lunch period of no less than the length of time allotted for one (1) regular class period at the secondary or middle school level. Teachers may leave the school building during their lunch period. However, prior to leaving, they shall inform the main office.

B. Guidelines for Elementary and Secondary School

- 1. Early dismissal on a day when a school has a scheduled religious release time program, this time shall be used for instructional program articulation, parent-teacher conferences, and professional improvement workshops. The planning for the use of this time will be determined by the Administration in cooperation with the Association. However, if the supervision of those children is a serious problem, because less than a majority of the students are involved in the released time programs, the arrangement will not be adopted. This arrangement will also not be adopted if it would violate the Regulations of the Commissioner, or result in a loss of state aid.
- 2. Any teacher, secondary or elementary, may be assigned to cover classes in an emergency where a substitute cannot be obtained during his/her normal preparation.
- 3. Teachers whose school day is six (6) hours and twenty-five (25) minutes shall be in their school building fifteen (15) minutes before the start of classes in that building and shall be at their first assignment five (5) minutes before the start of classes in that building.
- 4. Except as provided in subparagraph "2" above and when no other method of balancing the teaching load is possible, and as recommended by the building principal, or supervisor, and if the teacher agrees to be assigned to extra student teaching periods beyond the agreed teacher load (see Article XI), he or she shall be compensated at the rate of one-sixth (1/6) of a day's salary for each such additional period. Such extra teaching periods will be on a voluntary basis and will be utilized only to meet special temporary situations and will not be permanent in nature. Except as herein modified, existing policy in this area shall remain in effect.
- 5. Science, Life and Careers and Technology rooms will not be used for homeroom purposes unless unavoidable.
- 6. In the Science Department, an aide will provide assistance in setting up laboratories, clean-up and inventory detail. The District will continue the science aide position at Louis M. Klein Middle School for up to nineteen and one-half (19.5) hours weekly.
- 7. No science laboratory course shall exceed the number of stations available.
- 8. In the event a teacher is assigned to serve as a co-teacher for the first time, which does not include new co-teaching partnerships if the teachers have co-taught before, the two teachers assigned to co-teach together shall be provided with at least one (1) day of professional development. The teacher's participation in this professional development will be at the teacher's discretion.

C. Guidelines for Elementary School Assignments

- 1. Within the limitations of space at the present time, the policy of the Board should be to limit the number of pupils in the various grades to enable the teacher to individualize instruction more effectively. Every effort will be made to balance class sizes among the kindergarten sections in each building. A full-time teacher aide will be provided for all kindergarten classes.
- 2. At each elementary grade level per building, up to one (1) student per class section, who arrives after August1st, may be added to existing class sections on an equitable basis. The adjustment of the cut-off date from August 15th to August 1st shall sunset at the request of the Association if said request is made by December 1, 2020, and there is a factual basis for making said request, in which case the cut-off date for adjusting elementary class sizes according to this provision will revert to August 15th. In the event that it becomes necessary to make the aforesaid assignments, the Superintendent shall consult with the Association President as soon as is practicable. Should it become necessary to assign more than one (1) student per class section in a particular grade level during the school year, the Superintendent shall consult with the Association President as soon as is practicable and shall immediately assign additional resources such as full time teacher assistants or teaching staff. In no event will more than two (2) students per class section be added under this clause.

Except in the situation described hereinabove, there will be a maximum of twenty-three (23) pupils in grades one (1) — three (3) and a maximum of twenty-six (26) pupils in grades four (4) and five (5). The above maximums shall include special education self-contained students who are mainstreamed into these individual sections.

- 3. When a student is placed in an included setting pursuant to the student's IEP, the following guidelines shall apply:
 - a) Volunteers shall be solicited to teach inclusion classes following written notification that such classes will be established. The District shall have the right to assign teachers to teach inclusion classes. Assignments shall be made on a year-to-year basis; however, the District shall endeavor to avoid assignments to teach an inclusion class for more than one (1) year.
 - At the teacher's discretion, any teacher assigned to work in the inclusion program may utilize the provisional time for purposes of dealing with additional duties associated with inclusion, recognizing that he/she is responsible for providing assistance to students in need. However, should a teacher utilize the provisional time for inclusion purposes, the teacher shall not be compelled to work additional time.

- c) In the event a teacher claims that a staffing responsibility identified in a child's Individualized Education Program ("IEP") is being unmet, said teacher and/or the Association shall have the right to file a grievance pursuant to Article XXVI. Said grievance may be heard through Stage 2 and shall not be arbitrable.
- 4. The range of class sizes in art, library, music and physical education shall be as in §C(2) above, with the following exceptions:

If the class size in these areas exceeds the maximum class size by two (2) or three (3) students, a teacher aide shall be provided. If the class size exceeds the maximum by more than three (3) students, a part-time teacher shall be hired for an additional section, or team teaching shall be provided as determined by the Superintendent of Schools.

- 5. Each elementary teacher shall have the option of leaving his/her classroom when a special teacher is in charge of his/her class except on special occasions when otherwise requested by the specialist.
- 6. Each elementary classroom teacher and each elementary special teacher shall be provided with a minimum of two-hundred seventy (270) minutes per six (6) day cycle for preparation purposes. This shall include one preparation period per day of at least twenty (20) minutes. Elementary Principals will provide a mechanism in each elementary school to relieve regular classroom teachers whose a.m. and/or p.m. schedules do not permit them to leave the classroom for a lavatory break.

7. Special Subject Teachers

a) Art

There shall be a full time art room assigned for the use of the art teachers in each elementary school. Art teachers shall have at least five (5) minutes between each class for the purpose of cleaning up and setting out the materials for the next class. These minutes shall not be counted as part of his/her preparation time.

b) Physical Education

Physical Education teachers shall have at least five (5) minutes between each class for the purpose of reorganizing and setting up materials and equipment for the next class. These minutes shall not be counted as part of his/her preparation time.

c) <u>Library</u>

Librarians shall have at least five (5) minutes between each class for the purpose of organizing materials for the next class. These minutes shall not be counted as part of his/her preparation time.

d) Music

Music teachers shall have at least five (5) minutes between each class for the purpose of organizing materials for the next class. These minutes shall not be counted as part of his/her preparation time.

e) <u>Music</u>

Vocal music teachers shall not be scheduled for more than four (4) consecutive classes.

8. Teachers shall not be directed to cover another teacher's assignment or to handle a double class, or part of a class. In an emergency situation, teachers may be so directed for up to two hours each school year. After this initial coverage, teachers shall be compensated at the following rates per teacher per day:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$55.00
2020-21	\$56.00
2021-22	\$57.00
2022-23	\$58.00

9. All elementary teachers shall have an uninterrupted, duty-free forty-five (45) minute lunch period each day. Teachers may leave the school building during their lunch period.

D. School Hours

- 1. Substantial changes in the time of teacher arrival and departure may be made upon consultation with the Association. Such changes shall not alter the length of the school day which is six (6) hours and twenty-five (25) minutes for the elementary schools and six (6) hours and fifty (50) minutes for secondary schools except as elsewhere provided in this agreement.
- 2. a) Teachers shall expend nine (9) hours per month of provisional time beyond the regular school day for professionally related activities. The District and the Association agree that providing extra help to students is the priority for the use of provisional time. To the greatest extent practicable, the scheduling of provisional time will be equally distributed throughout the month. Teachers shall be exempted from provisional time one week per month during the week when contractual two-hour professional development occurs. Professionally related activities may be

assigned by the teacher's supervisor and may include, but are not limited to, the following: academic intervention services, student enrichment, tutoring, meetings with the principal and/or assistant principal(s), joint administration-teacher meetings, meetings to work on curriculum and assessments, meetings called by the Superintendent, faculty meetings, department or grade-level meetings, RTI meetings, intra-school and interschool planning meetings, parent conferences, Committee on Special Education (CSE) meetings, meetings with paraprofessionals or support staff, and/or leading or participating in professional development. If a teacher leads professional development during provisional time, he/she shall be compensated for the planning time associated with the professional development, as specified in Article V(E)(2)(a). See also Exhibit A.

- b) The District shall have the right to assign up to two (2) teachers per secondary department to a 6th class with pay at the rate of one-one thousandth (1/1000th) of *MA Step 6* for AIS and enrichment. This authority will not be used to reduce staff.
- c) High school physical education teachers may be assigned to duties two (2) mornings per week for thirty (30) minutes each morning prior to the beginning of the work day or five (5) afternoons per week for fifteen (15) minutes each afternoon after the end of the work day in lieu of the provisional time. These assignments may be rotated and they may be shifted to accommodate coaching assignments.
- Department/grade-level meetings shall be limited to a total of five (5) meetings per year, except that during the 2018-19 school year said department/grade-level meetings shall be discontinued. In addition, faculty meetings shall be limited to ten (10) per year, with the exception that principals may call two (2) additional faculty meetings in the event of an emergency or urgent need, as determined by the building principal. Faculty, departmental and grade meetings after the regular school day shall not exceed one (1) hour and ten (10) minutes; however they may be extended up to an additional ten (10) minutes to achieve appropriate closure. Attendance at the first departmental or grade meeting of each month shall not count toward completion of the employee's provisional time obligation under paragraph "2" above.
- 4. In addition, each teacher at his/her discretion and as he/she deems necessary, may remain in his/her assigned building after the close of the regularly scheduled day in connection with his/her professional duties and requirements of his/her students.
- E. Attendance Record Teachers

Each teacher will check in and out on the mutually agreed upon form. A teacher may be excused, by the principal, from duties and assignments for a portion of a session provided that such period of absence does not exceed one-half (1/2) of a school day. Any approved deviation from scheduled hours should be noted in writing, by the teacher, in the school office attendance record. The teacher should write the phrase "approved by principal" in noting departures from regular schedule which have principal's approval. In cases involving non-approved departures from the regular schedule, the reason for the deviation shall be noted in writing by the teacher.

F. Multiple Building Assignments of Teachers

1. Teachers who are assigned to more than one (1) school in any one (1) school day will receive the amount of money paid to Federal employees per mile for all interschool driving required to be done by them and the amount of reimbursement shall be determined in a mileage schedule agreed upon by both parties.

In arranging schedules for teachers who are assigned to more than one (1) school, an effort will be made to limit the amount of inter-school travel. Such teachers will be notified of any changes in their schedules as soon as practicable.

- 2. Such teachers shall follow the "School Hours" of the building to which they initially report in the morning.
- 3. Travel time between assignments in different buildings shall be as follows:

<u>Destination</u>	Minutes
Between the Middle School Parsons, and HAS	15
Between the High School and the above buildings	20
Between Purchase and any of the above buildings	25
Between Purchase and Preston	20
Between Preston and any building except Purchase	35

- 4. All such travel time shall not be considered as part of a teacher's lunch and/or preparation period. However, if more than fifteen (15) minutes remain after arrival and before the next assignment, such time shall be considered preparation time.
- G. Response to Intervention (RtI) Meetings and Instructional Support Team (IST) Meetings:
 - 1. At the elementary and secondary level, RtI and/or IST meetings may be scheduled to occur before or after school and the time spent in RtI and/or IST meetings shall count toward the teachers' or related service providers' provisional time requirement. At the secondary level, RtI and/or IST meetings may also be scheduled to occur during team meeting time or during professional periods.

- 2. a) Teachers will be notified of students who have an IEP on or before the first day of classes, or the student's first day of attendance in school.
 - b) For initial placement of pupils with handicapping conditions after the first week of school all receiving teachers shall be involved with the preparation of the thirty (30) day IEP. Student placement dates will allow receiving teacher time to prepare materials for entry into his/her class for those students currently within the school district. Normally, this will not exceed two (2) days. Every reasonable effort will be made with regard to placement dates for students with handicapping conditions coming from other districts.
- 3. Every effort will be made to group special education students to best meet their learning needs and IEP goals. To the extent practicable, special education students will be equitably distributed among available sections.
- 4. The provisions in this article that apply to the education of special education students in the District apply to any student that may be enrolled in a District special education program from BOCES or the Soundshore Consortium.
- 5. In applying for a variance for Special Education classes, the district shall notify the Association of said application, and separately of the action taken on said application.
- 6. Individual Education Plans (IEP's)

Consistent with the Superintendent's guidelines, substitute teachers will be hired to release each Special Education teacher from normal instructional responsibilities for up to two (2) days per school year in order to provide time for these teachers to prepare IEP's for students.

Requests for additional time may be made to the Superintendent through the Director of Pupil Personnel Services. The Superintendent's decision shall be final.

7. In a building where there is a self-contained class, the district will make every reasonable effort to provide a full-time psychologist. The District shall have met its obligation to "make every reasonable effort" to provide a full-time psychologist in a building with a self-contained class when it has considered the following variables in making this determination: total enrollment in the school, number of students with IEPs and 504 plans, number of students in the school who require mandated counseling, number of students who require behavior intervention plans, and the staffing cost associated with assigning a full-time psychologist. The Association shall have the right to review the analysis completed by the District in making this determination.

H. Department Chairpersons and Liaison Teachers

1. <u>Organization</u>

- a) Department Chairperson The position of Department Chairperson may be created, at the discretion of the Superintendent, in the following Departments at the high school and middle school: Math, Social Studies, English, Foreign Language and Science.
 - i. Chairpersons in the high school shall be assigned no more than four (4) periods, or where applicable, an eighty percent (80%) teaching schedule per day. Chairpersons in the middle school shall be assigned no more than five (5) periods, or where applicable, one hundred percent (100%) teaching schedule per day. They shall be available for additional meetings after school as mutually agreed upon between the Administration and the individual Chairperson.
 - ii. Two (2) positions of Co-Chairperson in the area of Computer Education may be created at the discretion of the Superintendent. The teachers appointed to these positions shall have a total of three (3) periods of release time or the equivalent thereof to be assigned by the Superintendent.

One position shall be designated as "K-8" and the second position shall be designated as "7-12". The Co-Chairpeople shall each receive the applicable annual chairperson stipend.

- iii. The positions of Elementary Chairpersons Grades K two (2) and three (3) five (5) may be created at the discretion of the Superintendent. A teacher appointed to the position of Elementary Chairperson shall have a teaching load of no more than a seventy percent (70%) teaching schedule per day, to be determined by the Superintendent of Schools.
- iv. The work-year for Department Chairpersons shall consist of five (5) additional days over and above those of the regular teaching staff. The particular days involved shall be mutually agreed upon between the Administration and the individual Chairperson.
- b) Chair/Liaison At the discretion of the Superintendent, the position of Chair/Liaison may be created as follows: Art (K-12); Music (K-12); Business (6-12); Industrial Arts (6-12); Home Economics (6-12).
 - i. Chair/Liaison (K-12) shall be assigned no more than four (4) periods, or where applicable, an eighty percent (80%) teaching schedule per day. They shall be available for additional meetings

after school as mutually agreed upon between the Administration and the individual Chair/Liaison.

- ii. Chair/Liaison (6-12) shall have a full teaching load except they shall not be assigned supervisory duty.
- c) Anyone appointed in §H shall not be assigned supervisory duty.
- d) Additional compensation for Chairpersons and Chair/Liaisons will be provided as stipulated in Exhibit E.
- 2. Appointment: All appointments shall be for one (1) year, and the annual selection will be solely at the discretion of the Administration.
- 3. Only teachers tenured in the appropriate area shall be eligible for such positions.
- 4. The appointment process shall be in accordance with Article VII, §C of the contract.
- 5. Current Department Chairpersons and/or Chair/Liaison Teachers who reapply for the position and are not appointed, or who are reassigned to full teaching duties during the school year, shall be given reasons in writing. Such reasons as "the department would profit from a change in leadership"; or the administration feels that rotating this position is "desirable"; "the administration feels that the position has been a strain on you personally and that you need a rest", will be acceptable.
- 6. The persons appointed to these positions will continue to be designated as teachers, and no administrative certificate will be required.

I. Job Description

- 1. Department Chairpersons
 - a) To provide leadership to curriculum development projects which will keep the educational offerings of the department current in terms of national and state goals and, also, appropriate for the needs of Harrison students.
 - b) To plan with the other members in the department to teach the curriculum content in such a fashion that all students will receive the same high quality of classroom instruction and content offering.
 - c) To observe the non-tenured teacher in his/her department a minimum of four (4) occasions annually and the tenured teacher in his/her department a maximum of two (2) occasions annually for the purpose of coordinating the curriculum and improving instruction. The Chairperson will not observe the classroom work of his/her fellow teachers for the purpose of

evaluating the instructional skills of the teacher nor will the Chairperson render judgment regarding the continued employment of a teacher. The written format to be used for recording such observations shall be mutually agreed upon between the parties.

- d) To prepare the budget for his/her department in cooperation with his/her fellow teachers and the school principals or their designees.
- e) To facilitate the substitute teacher program and direct the teachers in his/her department in the preparation of plans for use by the substitute.
- f) To consult with the principals regarding the quality of the instructional program in his/her department and make recommendations for continuous improvement.
- g) To assist the principals in preparing the teaching schedules and subject assignments for the members of the department.
- h) To assist the principals in interviewing new teachers for the department.

2. Clerical Assistance and Work Areas

- a) A full time secretary shall be provided for Department Chairpersons.
- b) Every effort will be made to provide an appropriate work area for Department Chairpersons.

ARTICLE XII: Teacher Evaluation & Records

It is agreed that the purpose of an evaluation procedure is continually to strengthen and improve the quality of education in the School District by improving teacher performance and by providing a basis for determinations regarding retention of teachers. It is a basic principle of any evaluation procedure that the identification of deficiencies in the performance of any teacher must incorporate a process of self-evaluation and must be promptly followed by good faith efforts toward improvement on the part of the teacher to the end that both probationary and tenured teachers shall attain and maintain a high level of proficiency.

The District and the Association agree to continue utilizing the Student Performance Category measures as contained in the District's currently approved Section 3012-d APPR Plan Document, with regard to both selection and use of such measures, through the 2020-2021 school year. A committee consisting of teachers and administrators shall be convened in the 2019-20 school year to study the use of multiple measures related to the Student Performance Category and make recommendations to the District and the Association. In the event that the parties cannot come to agreement regarding selection and use of student performance category measures to become effective with the 2021-2022 school year by close of business on December 31, 2021, then the parties mutually agree to convene a committee comprised of the Superintendent of Schools, the Association President and a mutually agreed upon expert, to select the Student Performance Category measures

and determine their use, commencing with the 2021-2022 school year. The mutually agreed upon expert shall be a neutral third party with special expertise in assessment measures used to inform teacher evaluation. The District's approved APPR plan shall be posted on the District website.

A. General Policies

- 1. The current observation evaluation instruments will be available for teachers in the principal's office at the beginning of each school year, or made available electronically through the online resource used to manage the observation and evaluation process.
- 2. All monitoring or observation of work and performance of teachers will be conducted openly with full knowledge of the teacher. The use of public address, audio systems or similar surveillance devices shall not be used for this purpose.
- 3. Only qualified certified administrators, supervisors and department chairpersons shall be used to evaluate teachers.

B. General Classroom Observation Procedures

- 1. The Marzano Causal Model of Teacher Effectiveness model shall be used to evaluate classroom teachers, with the exception that instructional specialists, school counselors, psychologists, and speech pathologists shall be evaluated with the role-specific Danielson model. The District's approved APPR plan is available on the District website: http://www.harrisoncsd.org/index.php/our-district/additional-information/documents-and-forms.
- 2. A pre-observation conference shall be held between the observer and a non-tenured and probationary teacher prior to the first formal announced observation of the school year in each of the teacher's probationary years. A pre-observation conference may be requested by a tenured teacher prior to the first formal observation of the school year. Discussion at the conference may include the teacher's objectives, methods and materials planned for the lesson to be observed.
- Once each school year a teacher shall have the right to request a deferment of a class observation if good reason exists. The observer will decide if good reason does exist. It is expected that such request will be honored with rare exceptions but it is also expected that individual teachers will rarely make such a request. The postponement may be for no more than ten (10) school days except by agreement between the teacher and the evaluator.
- 4. An effort will be made to arrange class observations and accompanying evaluations beginning early in the school year so as to provide maximum opportunity for positive individual guidance and assistance.
- 5. Classroom observations for <u>Probationary</u> teachers: There shall be a minimum of two (2) announced & two (2) unannounced long-form (whole class period)

observations; provided that one (1) long-form observation can be replaced with three (3) short-form observations (at least 10 minutes each) at the administrator's discretion. The first observation of the year must be announced and must include at least one (1) days' notice to the teacher. Proper notice of the first formal observation and one (1) subsequent observation for evaluation purposes in each year of the probationary period will be given. Administrators will provide one (1) day's notice. Additional observations for evaluation purposes may be conducted from time to time without prior notice.

- 6. Classroom observations for <u>Tenured</u> teachers: There shall be a minimum of one (1) announced long-form observation & one (1) unannounced long-form <u>or</u> one (1) short-form observation (at least 10 minutes each) at the administrator's discretion. The first observation of the year must be announced.
- 7. For long-form observations, post-observation conferences will occur within five (5) school days of the observation unless otherwise mutually agreed and the observation report will be provided to the teacher within five (5) school days of the post-observation conference.
- 8. Subsequent observations will only occur after five (5) school days have passed since the teacher received written feedback from the last long-form observation.
- 9. Short-form observations will be at least ten (10) minutes in duration; any classroom visit of at least ten (10) minutes will result in written feedback to the teacher.
- 10. Written feedback from short-form observations will be provided to the teacher within five (5) school days of the lesson and a post-observation conference for a short-form observation is only required at the request of the teacher or administrator, but will occur within five (5) school days of the teacher receiving the written feedback if requested.
- 11. Teachers may submit artifacts of professional practice that the administrator may choose to assess and include in the teacher's evaluation. Consistent with Regents' Rules, such artifacts must constitute otherwise observable components of the practice rubric to be included within the teacher's evaluation.
- 12. A copy of every classroom observation and annual evaluation report shall be placed in the teacher's personnel file. No classroom observation or annual evaluation report shall be submitted to Central Administration, placed in the teacher's file or otherwise distributed or acted upon without the teacher having been provided the opportunity to acknowledge and respond to the observation or evaluation as specified in subsection 13 below.
- 13. The teacher shall have the opportunity to sign or append an electronic signature to any report of an observation or evaluation report to indicate that he or she has

seen the report, with the understanding that such signature does not necessarily indicate agreement with the contents of the report. Included in any negative report should be suggestions designed to improve the performance of the teacher. The teacher being evaluated shall have ten (10) working days to submit a written response to the evaluation report, which shall be attached to it in his/her file. The time limits in this paragraph may be extended upon mutual written agreement.

- 14. Because of the subjective nature of personnel evaluation, it may be advisable that a teacher be observed by more than one (1) administrator during the school year.
- 15. Probationary teachers shall have the option to produce and submit to their supervisor(s) a written mid-year reflection on their progress. The Mentor Advisory Council shall produce a sample written reflection and will develop guidelines for the implementation of the written reflection.

D. Notice of Tenure Denial

Probationary teachers to be denied tenure or not to be employed for the following school year will be so notified at least sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of such termination. A teacher who fails to exercise his/her duties faithfully and responsibly after receiving notice of termination shall be subject to summary dismissal. Such dismissal shall not be subject to grievance procedure.

E. Evaluation of Part-time and Tenured Teachers

- i. In addition to observations initiated by the evaluator, tenured teachers may also invite observations.
- ii. Administrators are encouraged to offer constructive suggestions designed to meet the particular needs of the experienced teacher.
- iii. Prior notice of the first formal observation for evaluation purposes will be given. Administrator will provide one (1) day's notice. Additional observations for evaluation purposes may be conducted from time to time without prior notice.
- iv. The District commits to developing an alternative APPR for tenured teachers to be implemented in the 2012-13 school year. The District and the Association agree to form a joint committee in the 2011-12 school year to study samples from other districts and develop the alternative APPR program. The District retains the authority to write an APPR for a teacher who had been completing an alternative APPR in a given year if the Superintendent determines it is warranted.

F. Review of Personnel File

A teacher will be provided, upon request, an opportunity to review and make copies of non-confidential personnel data concerning him/herself by appointment with the

Superintendent or designee. All such material will be kept in files located with the Superintendent' or designee. A teacher will be entitled to have a representative of the Association accompany him/her during such review. Only those who have an official right and reason for so doing may inspect a teacher's file, and said file shall not be open to public inspection except upon specific consent by the teacher and the Association.

G. Response to Derogatory Materials

No material derogatory to the teacher's conduct, service, character or personality will be placed in his/her personnel file unless the teacher has had an opportunity to review the material. The teacher will acknowledge that he or she has had the opportunity to review such material by affixing his/her signature and the date to the copy to be filed, with the express understanding that such signature in no way indicates agreement with the contents thereof. The teacher will also have the right to submit a written answer to such materials, and his/her answer shall be reviewed by the Superintendent and attached to the file copy.

H. Teacher Discipline

No teacher will be reduced in rank or compensation, or deprived of any professional advantage without just cause.

I. Complaints Against a Teacher

When an administrator receives a parental complaint or student complaint against a teacher and the Administrator decides to make the complaint a matter of record in the teacher's personnel file, the teacher shall have the opportunity to discuss the complaint with the Administrator and to include a response to the complaint in his/her personnel file.

At the teacher's request a representative of the Association shall be present when the complaint is discussed with the teacher in conference with the Administration.

Time lost by a teacher in connection with the investigation of any incident mentioned in this Article shall not be charged against the teacher.

J. Report of Special Achievement

Administrators are hereby encouraged to place in the teacher's file information of a positive nature indicating special competencies, achievements, performances or contributions of an academic or professional nature. Any such materials received from outside competent, responsible sources shall be included in the teacher's file. The teacher will acknowledge that he or she has had the opportunity to review such material by affixing his/her signature to a copy to be filed.

ARTICLE XIII: Sick Leave

A. Sick Leave

1. All teachers shall receive fourteen (14) days sick leave annually at full salary. For all teachers hired prior to July 1, 1995, there shall be unlimited accumulation of unused sick days. For all teachers hired on or after July 1, 1995, there shall be a maximum accumulation of two hundred twenty-five (225) sick days. A doctor's certificate may be required upon the request of the Board of teachers who are absent the day before or the day after a school holiday for personal illness and also after an absence of five (5) consecutive school days.

2. Reimbursement for Required Doctor's Certificate

a) If the teacher has seen a doctor, then reimbursement for the cost of a required certificate will be made up to a maximum of:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$15.00
2020-21	\$15.00
2021-22	\$15.00
2022-23	\$15.00

b) If the teacher has not seen a doctor, then reimbursement for the cost of visiting a physician and obtaining a required certificate will be made up to a maximum of:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$35.00
2020-21	\$35.00
2021-22	\$35.00
2022-23	\$35.00

- c) In all cases where costs are reimbursed by insurance, the District will not pay.
- d) No payment will be made for certificate requests related to the absence of a teacher the day before or the day after a holiday.
- 3. Teacher absences shall be an area of mutual concern to both the Association and the Board. To this end a form will be developed to record and report a teacher's annual absences.

B. Sick Leave Bank

A Sick Leave Bank (SLB) shall be established to provide income protection to participants in the event of long-term illness or injury.

1. <u>Definitions</u>

- a) "Eligible Teacher" Any member of the Bargaining Unit who has been in the Harrison School System for at least three (3) school years.
- b) "Committee" The group of individuals appointed to administer the SLB, as hereinafter provided.
- c) "Contribution of Leave Days" A form approved by the Committee for eligible teachers to sign to contribute the appropriate leave days for such participation, as hereinafter provided.
- d) "Participant" A teacher who has been approved by the Committee and whose participation has not been terminated as hereinafter provided.
- e) "Benefit Leave" A withdrawal from the SLB of leave days granted by the Committee.
- f) "Leave Day Withdrawal Request" A form approved by the Committee for Participants to sign when applying for Benefit Leave.

2. <u>Composition and Responsibilities of Committee</u>

The Committee shall:

- a) Consist of three (3) teachers appointed by the Association. The methods of selection, terms of office, and other similar issues shall, with respect to each such teacher, be determined by, and be the responsibility of, the Association.
- b) The authority of the committee is limited to the administration of the regulations set forth herein and shall inform the Superintendent of its steps, procedures, and operations and make available to him/her all decisions as well as rationales employed in making those decisions.
- c) Prepare appropriate forms of contribution of Leave Days and Leave Day Withdrawal Request; arrange for duplication and distribution thereof so as to assure their availability to all who are entitled to receive them.
- d) Take all appropriate steps as are reasonable in order to facilitate enrollment in the SLB.

- e) Establish procedures for the maintenance of appropriate records with respect to SLB in conjunction with the Business Office.
- f) Review and pass upon all Leave Day Withdrawal Requests submitted to it. All forms approved by the Committee shall be forwarded promptly to the Business Office. Any disapproval shall be returned promptly to the applicant, together with an explanation for such disapproval.
- g) Do all other things necessary to insure the proper functioning of the SLB.

3. Contributions

- a) The initial contribution required of each eligible teacher shall be two (2) Sick Leave Days.
- b) The Committee shall call upon Participants for contributions of one (1) additional day each whenever the total number of days in the SLB falls below four hundred (400).

4. <u>Withdrawals</u>

- a) A Participant must exhaust all accumulated sick leave days and wait thirty (30) school days from the date the long-term illness or injury commenced prior to being eligible for Sick Leave Bank days.
 - i. An applicant with thirty (30) or more accumulated sick leave days will be required to exhaust all sick leave days prior to making application to the Sick Leave Bank. Once all days have been exhausted, the Participant shall immediately be eligible to apply to the Sick Leave Bank.
 - ii. An applicant with less than thirty (30) accumulated sick leave days will be required to exhaust all sick leave days prior to making application to the Sick Leave Bank. Once all days have been exhausted, the Participant shall be removed from payroll during the remainder of the thirty (30) school day wait period. Only after waiting thirty (30) school days shall the employee be eligible to apply to the Sick Leave Bank. If the employee meets the criteria for Sick Leave Bank days, days shall be retroactive to the thirty-first (31st) day.

For example and example only: If an employee has twenty-five (25) accumulated sick days and suffers from a long-term illness or injury, said employee must use his/her twenty-five (25) sick days first and will then be removed from payroll for five (5) days prior to being eligible to apply for days from the Sick Leave Bank.

- b) If a Participant returns to school in the same year after being granted days from the Sick Leave Bank and subsequently suffers from a catastrophic illness which requires the Participant to be out of school, said Participant shall not be required to wait thirty (30) school days prior to being eligible for Sick Leave Bank days. If a Participant returns to school in the same year after being granted days from the Sick Leave Bank and subsequently suffers from an illness or injury, other than a catastrophic illness, which requires the Participant to be out of school, said Participant shall be required to wait thirty (30) school days prior to being eligible for Sick Leave Bank days.
- c) Withdrawals may only be made in connection with a long-term illness, or injury, of a Participant. This shall not include illness or injury of another member of a Participant's family or time taken by a Participant to assist such other family member, nor shall it cover days for which a Participant is receiving Workmen's Compensation.
- d) Should a Participant be unable to do so, a member of the Participant's family or an agent may prepare and file a Sick Leave Withdrawal Request on the Participant's behalf.
- e) Each Sick Leave Withdrawal Request must be accompanied by a statement signed by a physician confirming the nature of the illness or injury and the anticipated duration of the resulting incapability to attend to the Participant's duties.
- f) Should the Committee so request, either before or after approval of a Sick Leave Withdrawal Request, the Participant shall be required to undergo a medical review by a physician of the Committee's choice at the Participant's expense. Failure to comply with such request shall result in disapproval or cancellation of the request.
- g) The Committee shall not grant a withdrawal of more than thirty (30) days for any one (1) Participant at any one time. Additional leave days may be granted to a Participant after any thirty (30) day grant only on request to, and after review by, the Committee and compliance with any reasonable requirements requested by the Committee. The maximum lifetime benefit available to any participant in the SLB shall be one hundred eighty (180) days.
- h) The Committee shall have the right to disapprove Sick Leave Withdrawal Request for any appropriate reasons, including any duly authenticated improper use of accumulated sick leave by the Participant.
- i) The decisions of the Committee are final.

5. Termination

A Participant's right to continue to participate in the SLB shall terminate only upon termination of Participant's employment by the District or failure of the Participant to contribute additional leave days duly called for by the Committee, unless the Committee grants a waiver.

6. In the event the District believes that the Sick Leave Bank Committee granted days inappropriately, the matter will then be resolved through grievance and arbitration.

ARTICLE XIV: Extended Leaves of Absence

A. Leaves of Absence For Professional Association Officers

The Board agrees that one (1) teacher who has tenure at any one (1) time designated by the Association will, upon request, be granted a leave of absence for up to two (2) years without pay for the purpose of engaging in Association (local, state or national) activities. Upon return from such leave, such teacher will be considered as if he or she were actively employed by the Board during the leave and will be placed on the salary schedule at the level he or she would have achieved except for such leave.

B. Association Attendance at Professional Meetings

The District will grant up to ten (10) days at full pay for Association business. From the sixth (6th) through the tenth (10th) day, the Association will reimburse the District for the cost of substitute teachers.

C. Peace Corps, Exchange Teacher and Similar Leaves

A leave of absence without pay of up to two (2) years will be granted to any tenured teacher who joins the Peace Corps, Vista, National Teachers Corps, or serves as an exchange teacher and is a full-time participant in such programs. The teacher returning from such leave will not receive credit for steps in the salary schedule. In all other respects the teacher will receive such benefits to which he or she is entitled under the then existing salary schedule.

D. Child Care Leave

1. An employee seeking a Child Care Leave due to the birth or adoption of each child shall be granted such leave in one (1) year increments, up to a maximum of two (2) years per child. When submitting the leave request, the employee shall indicate if the leave is for one (1) year or two (2) years. In the event that the employee chooses a one (1) year leave, the employee may extend the leave for an additional

year provided notice is given to the District on or before March 15th of the first year of the leave. If the first year's leave begins after March 15th the employee will indicate if the first year's leave will end on July 1st of that year, or if the second year's leave will be taken. For any teacher who requests a second year of child care leave for the same birth or adoption, the second year of child care leave must be contiguous with the first year of child care leave.

- 2. In the event a teacher elects to take a child care leave, the teacher will not be granted a leave for an additional birth or adoption unless said teacher has returned to service for one (1) full school year.
- 3. In the event a teacher elects to take a second year of a child care leave, in accordance with paragraph "1" above, and said teacher has a non-resident tuition free student attending the District, said teacher shall be required to pay the District's non-resident tuition rate during the second year of the child care leave.
- 4. Teachers who elect to take a second year of a child care leave in accordance with paragraph "1" above, are required to complete fifteen (15) hours of professional development upon return to the District.
- 5. The end of the first year's leave shall be the first July 1st, after the commencement of the Child Care Leave. The date of the leave's termination will be established between the employee and the District prior to the commencement of the Child Care Leave.
- 6. The employee's FMLA leave rights shall be subsumed within the Child Care Leave.
- 7. If husband and wife are both employed by the District only one (1) of them may take a child Care Leave at any given time.
- 8. If the employee chooses not to take Child Care Leave, upon exhausting her sick leave for pre and/or postpartum disability, the employee shall have the right to commence a FMLA leave. For employees not utilizing sick leave (male or female), the employee shall have the right to commence the FMLA leave upon the birth or adoption of the child.
- 9. Notice of the Request for Child Care Leave shall be provided by the employee to the District within sixty (60) calendar days of the date of commencement of such leave. In the case of an adoption, in which the employee learns of such adoption less than sixty (60) calendar days prior to its occurrence and subsequent election of Child Care leave, notice will be given to the District upon the employee's receipt of confirmation of the intended adoption.
- 10. Notice of the Request for FMLA Leave shall be provided by the employee to the District within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of commencement of such

leave. In the case of an adoption, in which the employee learns of such adoption less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to its occurrence and subsequent election of FMLA leave, notice will be given to the District upon the employee's receipt of confirmation of the intended adoption.

11. A teacher may request an early return to duty. The decision to grant this request will be at the sole discretion of the District.

E. Paternity & Adoption Leave

Paternity and adoption leave shall be provided as follows:

- 1. The paternity or adoption leave must be commenced within eight (8) weeks of the birth or adoption of the child.
- 2. The employee who takes paternity or adoption leave shall be provided with three (3) paid birth in family days.
- 3. Directly following the three (3) paid birth in family days, the employee taking paternity or adoption leave may use to ten (10) family illness days and said family illness days shall be deducted from the employee's available sick leave balance.
- 4. Following the birth in family and family illness days, the employee taking paternity or adoption leave may opt to take up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid FMLA leave with benefits.
- 5. Following the FMLA leave, the employee taking paternity or adoption leave may take up to two (2) years of unpaid Child Care Leave without benefits.
- 6. If both parents are employed by the District, only one parent may utilize the aforementioned leave benefits (except that FMLA may be split between parents, up to twelve (12) weeks total).
- 7. All other notice requirements and leave duration provisions that apply to birth mothers apply to paternity and adoption.

F. Personal Leave Without Pay

A leave of absence without pay or increment may be granted to tenured teachers at the discretion of the Board in cases of special need. Seniority shall not accrue during a leave of absence without pay.

G. Public Office Leave of Absence

The Board will grant a leave of absence not exceeding two (2) years without pay or increment to any teacher to campaign or serve in public office.

H. Resumption of Benefits After Leave

All benefits to which a teacher was entitled at the time his/her leave of absence commenced, including unused accumulated sick leave and credits toward sabbatical leave eligibility, will be restored to him/her upon his/her return, and he/ she will be assigned to the same position, which he or she held at the time said leave commenced, if available, or if not, to a substantially equivalent position. The teacher's employment shall begin no later than the first day of the next school year.

I. Requests for Extension of Leave

All requests and grants for extension or renewals of voluntary leaves will be in writing. Such written notification shall be submitted to the Superintendent no later than May 1st for a September 1st return and no later than October 1st for a February 1st return. If such notice is not received by the Superintendent by the designated dates and the teacher does not return to work, the teacher will be presumed to have abandoned his/her job. All leaves granted by the Board under §§ A, C, and F above shall commence at the end of a school year and shall not be granted for any period during the school year unless specifically authorized by the Superintendent.

ARTICLE XV: Temporary Leaves of Absence

A. Personal Leave

Each teacher shall be allowed three (3) days leave with full pay during each school year for the purpose of transacting or attending to personal business which cannot be attended to on other than a school day or during school hours. Except in an emergency, the nature of which shall be made known to the teacher's appropriate principal or immediate supervisor, the teacher taking personal leave shall give his/her appropriate principal or immediate supervisor written notice of his/her intention to take this leave at least three (3) days in advance of the day he or she proposes to be absent. A teacher need not specify his/her exact reason for taking leave, and approval by the appropriate principal or immediate supervisor is not required. The parties herewith acknowledge that the use of consecutive personal days does not require approval from the Superintendent of Schools unless those personal days result in a contiguous extension of days off prior to or after a holiday or vacation. The use of personal days, whether such days are requested with pay or without, which result in consecutive days off and a contiguous extension before or after a holiday or vacation, is only permissible with prior approval from the Superintendent. Personal days may not be used to extend a holiday or vacation except in cases of emergency and/or extenuating circumstances, as determined by the Superintendent. In all other cases, no personal days may be taken where such day(s) are contiguous to a holiday or vacation. In the event of an emergency and/or extenuating circumstance(s), an employee can request the use of personal leave. The employee is required to provide the Superintendent with the specific reason(s) for the leave, in

writing. The Superintendent, in his/her sole discretion, will consider the reason(s) and circumstances and either: 1) deny the request; 2) approve the request without pay; or 3) approve the request with pay. The Superintendent's determination shall be final and binding and shall not be reviewable in any forum. Unused personal days shall be added to a teacher's accumulated sick leave at the end of each school year.

B. Public Obligations

Necessary time will be granted by the Building Principal with full pay for appearances in any legal proceedings connected with the teacher's employment or with the school system if the teacher is required by law to attend.

C. Serious Illness in Family or of Member of Household

A teacher shall be allowed a maximum of five (5) days of leave with full pay during each school year because of serious illness in his/her immediate family or serious illness of a member of the household of which the teacher is a part, provided that the services of the teacher is required and the teacher is rendering service. Such leave to a maximum of five (5) days will be deducted from a teacher's accumulated sick leave. If a teacher takes one (1) family illness day on a day that immediately precedes or follows a school holiday or recess, he/she will not be required to provide a doctor's note to substantiate the absence. Any additional family illness days that occur before or after a school holiday or recess within the same school year shall require the teacher to provide a doctor's note to substantiate the absence(s). Each teacher shall be granted an extended leave of absence without pay for up to one (1) year for the purpose of caring for a seriously ill member of his/her family or a seriously ill nearest relative.

The Board may also grant additional leave without pay for this purpose.

D. Death in the Immediate Family or of Member of Household

- 1. A teacher shall be granted up to five (5) days of leave with full pay during each school year for each death in the immediate family or of a member of the household of which the teacher is a part.
- 2. A teacher shall be granted up to three (3) days of leave with full pay during each school year for each death in the family other than in the immediate family.

E. Birth in the Family

All teachers are granted up to three (3) days of leave with full pay during each school year due to the birth of a baby.

F. Definition of "Immediate Family"

For the purpose of §C and D(l) above, the term "Immediate Family" means spouse, child, mother, father, brother, sister. For the purpose of §D(2) above, the following members of the family are included: grandfather, grandmother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, grandchildren, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, aunt, uncle.

G. Jury Duty and Court Attendance

Teachers shall attempt to seek a deferment of jury duty to a date when school is not in session. Leave with full pay shall be granted for each school day when a teacher is required in Court for jury duty or when a teacher is required to be in Court for a school related matter as the result of service of a validly issued subpoena. If a teacher serving on jury duty is reimbursed by the court for his/her time, the teacher shall endorse said payment to the District or otherwise reimburse the district. If a teacher serving on jury duty receives compensation for travel to/from court, the teacher may keep this compensation.

ARTICLE XVI: Non-Instructional Duties

A. Assignment of Non-Instructional Duties

- 1. a) Elementary teachers will be relieved of assigned student supervisory duties (i.e. study halls, lavatory duties, lunch time duty, playground duty, hall duties, and bus duties).
 - b) Elementary teachers may volunteer to supervise playground activities during student lunch periods. It is understood that this voluntary supervision shall, in no way, be a term or condition of employment. Compensation shall be provided in accordance with Exhibit E.
- 2. Teachers will not be required to perform clerical functions such as registers, duplicating instructional materials, and school student accounts. It is expected that they will perform only those normal clerical functions ordinarily associated with their position.
- 3. Teachers relieved from non-instructional duties may be assigned professionally related activities such as:

Individual tutorial work
Approved curriculum development projects
Team meetings
Parent conferences
Academic preparation

4. The Board and Association acknowledge that the faculty's primary responsibility is to educate the children and that its energies should, to the maximum extent

possible, be utilized to this end. It is therefore, agreed that non-instructional duties will be minimized through rotation and/or elimination as it becomes practicable and educationally sound to do so.

- Non-instructional duties may include: bus supervision, lunch supervision, playground supervision, athletic and social events supervision, silent sustained reading and other assignments mutually agreed upon jointly by the Association and Administration. Voluntary participation in music night supervision, physical education night is not precluded by this provision, but no teacher shall be required, as a condition of employment, to attend these activities unless directly involved.
- 6. Teachers will not be required or requested and may not drive any vehicle carrying pupils to activities which take place away from school buildings, except in an emergency or, in the case of a school vehicle, with the consent of the teacher.
- 7. Nothing in this provision shall be construed to relieve teachers of a responsibility to assist in the general supervision and discipline of students at any and all times, including the control of students during the passing of classes.

B. Rotation of Non-Instructional Duties

- 1. a) All non-instructional duty assignments, whether they are voluntary duties or assigned duties, should be made on the basis of equitable distribution of duties and where appropriate on the basis of seniority if all other qualifications are equal among teachers who are equally qualified.
 - b) A qualified teacher who is most senior among the applicants for a paid non-instructional duty of a semester's or a year's duration shall not be appointed to said duty more often than every four (4) years unless there are insufficient qualified applicants.
 - c) If a problem concerning the performance of a teacher arises at one (1) of these duty assignments, the principal will notify the teacher in writing. Subsequently, if the teacher reapplies, the final determination will be made by the Building Principal.
- 2. Whenever administratively possible a first-year teacher will be assigned only those duties which allow that teacher to work with an experienced teacher. Such assignments should be changed frequently during the year to allow new teachers to gain experience in a variety of non-instructional duty assignments.

C. Meetings and School-Related Activities

1. The Association shall make every effort to encourage teachers to attend school - related activities. To this end, the Association shall publicize such activities:

- in the Association Newsletter, Top Hat
- at monthly Representative Council meetings, and
- at faculty meetings through the building directors.
- 2. Each school year there will be two (2) 'Back to School Nights' for grades K—twelve (12).

The Superintendent will set two (2) early dismissals for grades one (1) — five (5) each semester. This time will be used for parent conferences. The Superintendent will set two (2) full days each semester for Kindergarten parent conferences. Coverage will be arranged by the District.

3. Effective with the 2021-22 school year, K-12 teachers shall, upon request with at least two weeks' notice, devote up to three (3) hours to attend and participate in one (1) evening event with no additional compensation. The time devoted to this evening event shall count toward the teacher's provisional time requirement. The teacher may request to use provisional time to prepare for the event, subject to the approval of the teacher's supervisor. On or by June 30, 2021, the Association may make a written request to the Superintendent that this provision become null and void on July 1, 2021. The Superintendent shall have the discretion to grant this request based on a factual review of teachers' voluntary participation in evening events during the 2019-20 and 2020-21 school years. The Superintendent's determination shall be subject to the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE XVII: Student Teachers

- A. 1. A student teacher will be assigned to a teacher only with that teacher's consent except that a teacher may be required to accept a student teacher once in every five (5) years without the teacher's consent. A teacher taking a student teacher will be notified four (4) weeks before the start of the program except that the teacher may waive this notice requirement.
 - 2. Student teachers will be assigned to tenured teachers only.
 - 3. If the cooperating teacher is unable to obtain a course for which the District will give salary credit approval, then the teacher may, without prejudice, refuse to accept the student teacher, and shall not be assigned a student teacher as specified in paragraph "1" for one (1) year.

ARTICLE XVIII: Substitute Teachers

A. Qualifications of Substitutes

All positions requiring the employment of Substitutes will, to the extent possible, be filled by personnel who have met the State certification requirements. If a certified substitute teacher is unavailable, such vacancy will be filled by the best qualified non-certificated person available.

B. Notice of Long-Term Substitutes

The Association shall be promptly notified by the Superintendent of any non-certified substitute teacher who teaches more than forty (40) days in a school year.

C. Salaries of Substitutes

1. Per diem substitute teachers shall be paid a per diem rate of the following:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$119
2020-21	\$120
2021-22	\$122
2022-23	\$123

Any per diem substitute who has worked 40 substitute days in each of three (3) consecutive years will receive the per diem rate of the following:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$127
2020-21	\$128
2021-22	\$130
2022-23	\$132

2. A per diem substitute teacher shall be placed on the regular teacher salary schedule effective the twenty-first (21st) consecutive school day that the per diem substitute has been assigned to the same assignment.

D. Designated Per Diem Substitutes

- 1. The District may employ, at its discretion, designated per diem substitutes (known as undesignated substitutes) for the purpose of replacing regular teachers who are absent on a day-to-day basis.
- 2. Individuals hired as designated substitutes will be guaranteed one hundred twenty (120) school days of employment in a given school year with no guarantee of employment into a subsequent school year. Designated substitutes who are hired after the commencement of a school year shall receive a guarantee of a pro-rated number of days.

- 3. Designated substitutes shall not be eligible for fringe benefits of any kind afforded to members of the bargaining unit serving under other titles except as provided in paragraph "5" below.
- 4. Designated substitutes will serve on a part-time substitute basis. Therefore they shall not be entitled to seniority or be eligible to obtain tenure.
- 5. The rate of pay for designated substitutes shall be the following per diem rate:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$119
2020-21	\$120
2021-22	\$122
2022-23	\$123

However designated substitutes may opt for individual health insurance coverage. The rate of pay for designated substitutes who opt for individual health insurance shall be the following per diem rate:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$95
2020-21	\$97
2021-22	\$98
2022-23	\$99

ARTICLE XIX: Insurance, Annuities & Retirement

A. Tax Sheltered Annuity

The Board agrees to withhold a portion of a teacher's salary and to apply those funds to the purchase of an annuity plan or program agreed upon by the teacher and the Board.

There will be only two (2) enrollment periods throughout the year. Any employee who enrolls, or changes his/her rate of contribution to this plan must have his/her tax sheltered annuity enrollment form or contract into the school district Business Office by July 1st, to be effective by September 1st, or by December 1st, to be effective by January 1st. Employees may make changes to the amount of their tax deferred contributions as permitted by the District's third party administrator of the tax sheltered annuity benefit.

Any participating member who wishes to terminate or discontinue his/her contributions to this plan may do so by notifying the school district Business Office in writing at least thirty (30) days in advance of the termination date.

The contributions to the annuity plan will be automatically deducted in equal parts from each paycheck and forwarded to the respective companies after they have submitted their monthly statements verifying contract members to the Business Office.

B. Health Insurance

1. Effective July 1, 2019, all active employees who meet the criteria of §B(2) below, enrolled in the individual, family and two (2) person plan, shall make the following employee contributions:

2019-20:	17% employee contribution
2020-21:	17% employee contribution
2021-22:	17% employee contribution
2022-23:	17% employee contribution

In addition, in any year, should the cost of health insurance rise above twelve percent (12%), the cost above twelve percent (12%) will be equally shared between the parties.

The remaining cost of the health insurance program shall be assumed by the District.

- 2. Health insurance shall be limited to full-time employees only. However, part-time employees who were on staff as of June 30, 2000, and also received health insurance benefits at that time, shall continue to receive health insurance benefits at the same rate as the full-time employees.
- 3. For any employee that elects to participate in the District's § 125 plan (See Article XX, §D), the employee's health insurance contribution shall be deducted in accordance with such plan. For any employee that does not elect to participate in the District's § 125 plan, the employee's health insurance contribution will be deducted directly from the employee's salary over the course of the year.
- 4. The Board shall pay the full cost of health insurance in retirement for teachers who retire from the District prior to July 1, 2008, and who have at least twenty (20) years of service in the District. The Board shall select the health insurance plan. The Medicare health insurance program shall be considered in selecting the program for retired teachers. Effective July 1, 2008, the District and the Association members shall share the costs of health insurance for teachers retired from the District after June 30, 2008 in the following manner:

	Retiree's Portion	
Years of Service to the District		
	Pre- Medicare	Medicare
10-15 years of District service	10%	6%
16-20 years of District service	9%	5.25%

21-25 years of District service	7.5%	4.5%
26+ years of District service	5%	3%

- 5. While currently the District participates in the Southern Westchester Schools Cooperative Health Plan, a joint committee shall be established to investigate the possibility of subscribing to a new health insurance plan. It is understood that any such plan shall include all current and future benefits provided by the New York State Employees Health Plan.
- 6. Members of the bargaining unit who are covered under another health insurance plan under either a spouse or relative, may opt to waive coverage under this agreement for a full year by completing the appropriate form furnished by the District. In order to be eligible for this option a member of the bargaining unit must certify that he or she has health insurance through another source. For unit members who were hired prior to July 1, 2019, the District will pay these employees an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the net savings in premiums that would be expended on their behalf taking into account any retirement or social security that must be paid on this amount. For unit members hired with an effective start date on or after July 1, 2019, the rebate for declining health insurance shall be capped at \$6,000 for family coverage and \$3,000 for single coverage per year. Employees electing to waive coverage must do so by October 15th with the provisions of this section taking effect on January 1st. Payment to the employees shall be made in two (2) halves with the first half being made during the first payroll period in March and the second being made during the first payroll period in October. Reinstatement of full coverage may be made by notifying the District in writing no later than October 15th of the succeeding year. Reinstatement will take place on January 1st. In the event of an emergency causing the loss of insurance through another source the previously stated notification deadlines may be waived to the extent that there is no conflict with the requirements of the District's insurance carrier. If reinstatement occurs during such an emergency, the employee will repay, pro rata, any amount already forwarded to him/her.
- 7. For any teachers who retire on or after July 1, 2016, said retirees shall only be reimbursed for Medicare Part B costs up to the second federal reimbursement level in effect at the time of the teacher's retirement. Any individual who is currently receiving Medicare reimbursement from another source shall not be entitled to Medicare reimbursement from the District.

C. Benefit Trust

The Board shall contribute the following per capita payments to the Harrison Teachers' Benefit Trust, for the purpose of purchasing dental insurance, group life insurance and/or disability benefits:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$1,545

202021	\$1,545
2021-22	\$1,545
2022-23	\$1,545

Payment shall be made in one (1) lump sum to the Benefit Fund on or before July 31st of each year. Payment of the Board contribution shall be made in two (2) lump sums (each being one half [1/2] of the total), the first on or before July 31st of each year and the second on or before January 31st of each year. The Board shall deduct from the salary of a teacher, who so authorizes in writing, the teacher's contribution to the Benefit Trust in the amount designated by the teacher and shall transmit the monies so deducted to the Benefit Trust. The above payment or payments of the Board's contribution shall be amended as the employment situation changes and the Association shall certify the additions and deletions.

The Board shall contribute the same per capita payments to the Harrison Teachers Benefit Fund for its Administrators as it does for teachers.

D. Flexible Spending Plan

The parties shall continue to maintain a flexible spending plan in accordance with § 125 of the Internal Revenue Code.

E. Unused Sick Leave Conversion

Any member of the bargaining unit who retires shall be eligible for the following unused sick leave conversion benefits:

0-75	\$0.00	(0.00)
76-150	\$60.00	(4,500.00)
151-200	\$65.00	(3,250.00)
201-250	\$70.00	(3,500.00)
251-275	\$25.00	(625.00)
TOTAL		\$11,875.00

In addition to the foregoing, teachers who have worked thirty (30) or more years for the District shall be eligible for the following additional unused sick leave benefits:

0-75 \$60.00 (\$4500)

The per diem conversion rate for retirement purposes only shall be limited to a maximum of two hundred seventy-five (275) accumulated days.

In order to be eligible for this benefit, teachers who are to retire in June must notify the Superintendent of their intention no later than January 15th of the year in which they will retire.

Members retiring that wish to participate in the District's health insurance plan in retirement must use their sick leave conversion benefits for the purpose of premium payment into retirement according to the contribution rates set forth in Article XX, §B(4). The District shall maintain a separate accounting of said monies credited to each employee. Annually, costs attributable to the payment of the employee's share of health insurance premiums during retirement shall be recorded as a deduction from the sum credited in the accounting for each employee, until the balance is exhausted, at which time the retiree will himself/herself be billed and required to pay for his/her share of health insurance premiums. The District will provide annual statements to each retiree indicating the sums deemed remaining credited to the employee.

If the employee dies prior to exhaustion of the balance credited to them, the retiree's spouse or eligible dependents, during the period of COBRA coverage if elected, shall continue to have the costs attributable to the payment of the spouse's share of health insurance premiums deemed paid in the manner described above. Upon completion of the COBRA period of coverage, any amount remaining in the employee's accounting will be forfeited and revert to the District.

Employees who are eligible to retire and do not elect to take health insurance into retirement shall receive payment for those unused sick leave days.

F. Death Benefits

When a teacher dies in service, that teacher's accumulated sick leave, to a maximum of two hundred (200) days, shall be converted and paid to his/her beneficiaries at a per day rate of:

School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$108
2020-21	\$109
2021-22	\$110
2022-23	\$112

G. Part-Time Teachers

Part-time teachers who serve less than half-time shall not be eligible for the benefits set forth in this Article. Part-time teachers who serve half-time or more shall be eligible for the benefits set forth in this Article, except for the health insurance benefits which are set forth in Article XX, §B.

ARTICLE XX: Summer School

A. All openings for summer school positions shall be publicized on the District's website as soon as possible.

- B. No teaching position shall be filled by a teacher not employed by the School District if there is an equally qualified (certified) applicant for such position who is employed by said School District, and is recommended for it by the Summer School Principal.
- C. The Superintendent will have the right to restrict an applicant to one (1) class.
- D. When applications for Summer School positions exceed the positions available, the Superintendent shall consider each teacher's area of competence, major or minor field of study, and teaching years of experience.
- E. Summer School teachers will be granted one (1) personal leave day and one (1) sick leave day.
- F. Every effort will be made to limit assignments to no more than two (2) classes.
- G. When applicants for Summer School positions exceed the positions available, no teacher shall be given three (3) classes if another teacher is willing to accept one (1) class.
- H. Sections A, B, D, and E above shall also apply to Adult Education.

ARTICLE XXI: Job Description

- A. Published descriptions are to be developed for each class position including necessary qualifications, duties, organizational responsibilities and compensation, if any, above the salary schedule. Lines of responsibility and authority are to be clearly defined.
- B. Descriptions are to be brought up to date, when necessary, with the cooperation of affected individuals and the Association. All such descriptions shall conform to the Civil Service Law and Education Law wherever applicable.

ARTICLE XXII: School Calendar

The school calendar for each school year will be planned by the Superintendent and the Association.

A. There will be a total of one hundred eighty-four (184) days in the school calendar per school year. This schedule includes four (4) Superintendent's Conference Days. Time will be provided for Association activities during the first or second Superintendent's Conference Day. Superintendent Conference Days shall begin at 8:30 a.m. and end at 3:00 p.m. On such days, teachers shall have no preparation period and a one (1) hour lunch which shall be provided by the District. On any day when teachers are released from their teaching responsibilities for a full day, the day shall begin at 8:30 a.m. and end at 3:00 p.m., with one (1) hour for lunch.

- B. Emergency closing days will be budgeted up to a maximum of three (3) days each school year. Unused emergency closing days will be pre-scheduled and used as holidays once the Superintendent decides winter weather conditions are no longer a threat to the proper functioning of the school district.
- C. During the week immediately preceding the start of the school year, a four (4) day orientation and staff development program will be scheduled for teachers new to the District and for second year teachers.

ARTICLE XXIII: Reduction in Force

Before a final decision that entails elimination of positions a colloquy will take place between the Association leadership and the Superintendent.

A. Procedure

- 1. When considering reductions in staff, the Board will first attempt to effect such reductions by attrition and if the educational program would not be adversely affected in the judgment of the Superintendent, by transfer to a different tenure area if the teacher is appropriately certified. If terminations are required, they shall be by seniority within the tenure area.
- 2. In determining seniority for purposes of this Agreement, the seniority date for each teacher shall be established as beginning with his/her most recent date of commencement of employment, within the tenure area, in the School District or its former autonomous districts. Time spent on unpaid leaves of absence shall not be computed in determining seniority.
- 3. Notification of termination by reason of reduction in force shall be made in writing to the affected teacher or teachers and to the Association at least thirty (30) days before the last day of service.
- 4. If a teacher is dismissed due to reduction in force, the administration shall, if requested, provide letters of recommendation to the teacher.
- 5. Recall shall be in accordance with law.
- 6. The Board shall provide the Association with a seniority list every two (2) years. The Association may bring to the Board's attention any disagreement it may have with the accuracy of the list.
- B. Severance Pay and Medical Benefits

Teachers affected by a staff reduction shall receive at the time of such termination in addition to the recall provisions of the State Education Law:

- 1. A prorata salary equivalent to eight (8) weeks pay for teachers with ten (10) years or more service in the Harrison Central School District or its predecessor districts.
- 2. A prorata salary equivalent to six (6) weeks pay for teachers with seven (7) to nine (9) years of service in the Harrison Central School District or its predecessor districts.
- A prorata salary equivalent to four (4) weeks pay for teachers with three (3) to six
 (6) years of service in the Harrison Central School District or its predecessor districts.
- 4. A prorata salary equivalent to two (2) weeks pay for teachers with two (2) years of service in the Harrison Central School District or its predecessor districts.
- 5. Continuation of the Health Insurance Plan by the District for a period of up to six (6) months or the securing of other employment (whichever comes first) for teacher within paragraphs "1" through "4" above and continuation of the Plan by the District for a period of up to two (2) months or the securing of other employment (whichever comes first) for teachers with one (1) year of service in the District. The District will make every effort to provide this benefit within the rules of the Plan.
- 6. A teacher terminated, reemployed, and then terminated again shall receive as severance pay only the difference between the amount paid on occasion of the first termination and the amount to which additional years of service may entitle the teacher on occasion of the second termination.
- 7. No member of the bargaining unit hired on or after July 1, 1991 shall receive more than the following amounts pursuant to paragraphs "1" through "4" above. Said amount shall be increased to:

G 1 177	A .
School Year	Amount
2019-20	\$7,178
2020-21	\$7,268
2021-22	\$7,359
2022-23	\$7,451

ARTICLE XXIV: Board Rights

Except as specifically and expressly modified by the terms of this Agreement, the Board retains the sole and exclusive right to manage, direct and supervise the affairs of the District and the

exercise of such right shall not be subject to the grievance procedure or arbitration procedure set forth in this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXV: Grievance Procedure

A. Declaration of Purpose

Whereas, the establishment and maintenance of a harmonious and cooperative relationship between the Board and its teachers is essential to the operation of the schools, it is the purpose of this procedure to secure, at the lowest possible administrative level, equitable solutions to alleged grievances of teachers through procedures under which they may present grievances free from coercion, interference, restraint, discrimination or reprisal, and by which the Board and its teachers are afforded adequate opportunity to dispose of their differences without the necessity of time-consuming and costly proceedings before administrative agencies and/or the courts.

B. Definitions Used in Grievance Procedure

- 1. "Grievance" is a claim by any teacher or group of teachers based on any event or condition, which is a violation, misinterpretation or inequitable application of this Agreement.
- 2. "Principal" means the person in charge of the building.
- 3. "Superintendent" or "Chief Executive Officer" means Superintendent of Schools.
- 4. "Association" means Harrison Association of Teachers.
- 5. "Aggrieved Party" means any teacher claiming a grievance.
- 6. A "party in Interest" means any party named in a grievance who is not the aggrieved party.
- 7. "Hearing Officer" means any individual or Board charged with the duty of rendering decisions at any stage of the grievance procedure.

C. Procedures

1. All grievances shall include the name and position of the aggrieved party, the identity of the provision of this Agreement involved in said grievance, the time when and the place where the alleged events or conditions constituting the grievance existed, the identity of the party responsible for causing the said events or conditions, if known to the aggrieved party, and a general statement of the nature of the grievance and the redress sought by the aggrieved party.

- 2. Except for informal decisions at *Stage 1* all decisions shall be rendered in writing at each step of the grievance procedure, setting forth findings of fact, conclusions and supporting reasons. Each decision shall be promptly transmitted to the teacher and the Association.
- 3. If a grievance affects a group of teachers and appears to be associated with system-wide policies, it may be submitted by the Association directly at *Stage 2*, described below.
- 4. The preparation and processing of grievances, insofar as practicable, shall be conducted during the hours of employment. All reasonable effort will be made to avoid interruption of classroom activity and to avoid involvement of students in any phase of the grievance procedure.
- 5. The Board and the Association agree to facilitate any investigation which may be required and to make available any and all material and relevant documents, communications and records concerning the alleged grievance.
- 6. Except as otherwise provided at *Stage 1*, an aggrieved party and any party in interest shall have the right at all stages of a grievance to confront and cross examine all witnesses called against him/her to testify and to call all witnesses on his/her behalf, and to be furnished with a copy of any minutes of the proceedings made at each and every stage of this grievance procedure.
- 7. No interference, coercion, restraint, discrimination or reprisal of any kind will be taken by the Board or by any member of the administration against the aggrieved party, any party in interest, any representative or any other participant in the grievance procedure or any other person by reason of such grievance or participation therein.
- 8. Forms for filing grievances, serving notices, taking appeals, and making reports and recommendations, and other necessary documents will be developed and approved by both parties. The Chief Executive Officer shall then have them printed and distributed so as to facilitate operation of the grievance procedure.
- 9. All documents, communications, and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of the participant.
- 10. Nothing contained herein will be construed as limiting the right of any teacher having a grievance to discuss the matter informally with any appropriate member of the administration and having the grievance informally adjusted without intervention of the Association, provided the adjustment is not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement and the Association has been given an opportunity to be present at such adjustments and to state its views on the grievance. In the event that any grievance is adjusted without formal determination, pursuant to this procedure, while an adjustment shall be binding upon the aggrieved party and

shall, in all respects, be final, said adjustment shall not create a precedent or ruling binding upon either of the parties to this Agreement in future proceedings.

- 11. The grievant may choose whomever he wishes to represent him/her at *Stages 1* and 2, except that such representative may not be an official of a competing employee organization.
- 12. If any provision of this grievance procedure or any application thereof to any teacher or group of teachers in the negotiating unit shall be finally determined by any court to be contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications will continue in full force and effect.
- 13. The Chief Executive Officer shall be responsible for accumulating and maintaining an official Grievance Record which shall consist of the written grievance, all exhibits, transcripts, communications, minutes and/or notes of testimony, as the case may be, written arguments and briefs considered at all levels other than *Stage 1*, and all written decisions at all stages. Official minutes will be kept by a party agreeable to both sides at all proceedings at *Stages 1* and 2.

A copy of such minutes will be made available to the aggrieved party, the Association and the Chief Executive Officer within two (2) days after the conclusion of hearings at *Stages 2* and 3. The aggrieved party, the Association or the Chief Executive Officer may advise the appropriate hearing officer of any errors in said minutes. Any such claim of error in the minutes shall become a part of the Official Grievance Record and the hearing officer shall indicate the determination made respecting such claimed error. The Official Grievance Record shall be available for inspection and/or copying by the aggrieved party, the Association and the Board, but shall not be deemed a public record.

14. The election to submit a dispute hereunder to grievance and arbitration shall automatically be a waiver by the claimant of all other remedies or forums which otherwise could be available, except that when a claim is declared non-arbitrable by an arbitrator or a court, the claimant shall have access to other forums.

D. Time Limits

- 1. Since it is important to good relationships that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, every effort will be made by all parties to expedite the process. The time limits specified for either party shall be extended only by mutual agreement.
- 2. No written grievance will be entertained as described below, and such grievance will be deemed waived unless the grievance is presented in writing at the first stage within sixty (60) school days after the teacher knew or should have known of the act or condition on which the grievance is based.

- 3. If a decision at one stage is not appealed to the next stage of the procedure within the time limit specified, the grievance will be deemed to be discontinued and further appeal under this Agreement is barred.
- 4. Failure at any stage of the grievance procedure to communicate a decision to the aggrieved party, his/her representative and the Association within the specified time limit shall permit the lodging of an appeal at the next stage of the procedure within the time which would have been allotted had the decision been communicated by the final day.
- 5. In the event a grievance is filed on or after June 1st, upon request by or on behalf of the aggrieved party, the time limits set forth herein shall be reduced prorata so that the grievance procedure may be exhausted prior to the end of the school term or as soon thereafter as is possible.

E. Stage 1: Building Principal

- 1. A teacher having a grievance will discuss it with the building principal either directly or through an Association representative with the objective of resolving the matter informally. The principal will confer with all the parties in interest, but in arriving at his/her decision will not consider any material or statements offered by or on behalf of any such party in interest with whom consultation has been had without the aggrieved party or his/her representative present. If the teacher submits the grievance through a representative, the teacher may be present during the discussion of the grievance.
- 2. If the grievance is not resolved informally, it shall be reduced to writing and presented to the building principal. Within five (5) school days after the written grievance is presented to him/her, the supervisor shall, without any further consultation with the aggrieved party, or any party in interest, render a decision thereon in writing and present it to the teacher.

F. Stage 2: Chief Executive Officer

- 1. If the teacher initiating the grievance and/or the Association are not satisfied with the written decision at the conclusion of *Stage 1*, a written appeal of the decision at *Stage 1* with the Chief Executive Officer may be filed within ten (10) school days after the teacher has received such written decision. Copies of the written decision at *Stage 1* shall be submitted with the appeal.
- 2. Within eight (8) school days after receipt of the appeal, the Chief Executive Officer, or his/her duly authorized representative, shall hold a hearing with the teacher, his/her representative and all other parties in interest.

3. The Chief Executive Officer shall render a decision in writing to the teacher, his/her representative and the Association within eight (8) school days after the conclusion of the hearing.

G. Stage 3: Arbitration

- 1. After such hearing, if the teacher and/or Association are not satisfied with the decision at *Stage 2*, and the Association determines that the grievance is meritorious and that appealing it is in the best interests of the school system, it may submit the grievance to arbitration by written notice to the Chief Executive Officer within fifteen (15) school days of the decision at *Stage 2* except that no dispute may be submitted to arbitration which involves questions relating to the interpretation of the contract which, pursuant to the terms of the contract, "are not arbitrable" or "may not be submitted beyond the Chief Executive Officer's stage."
- 2. The rules of the American Arbitration Association shall govern both parties. If the parties mutually agree, the grievance may be submitted to expedited arbitration in accordance with the Expedited Labor Arbitration Rules. The District and the Association shall mutually agree to an arbitrator. If the parties fail to mutually agree on an arbitrator, the American Arbitration Association shall appoint an arbitrator.
- 3. The selected arbitrator will hear the matter promptly. The arbitrator's decision will be in writing and will set forth his/her findings of fact, reasoning and conclusions on the issues.
- 4. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon all parties.
- 5. The costs for the services of the arbitrator, including expenses, if any, will be borne equally by the Board of Education and the Association.

ARTICLE XXVI: No-Strike Clause

The Association agrees that neither it nor the employees it represents shall engage in a strike during the life of the contract.

ARTICLE XXVII: Miscellaneous Provisions

- 1. This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations or practices of the Board which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with its terms. The provisions of this Agreement shall be incorporated into and be considered part of the established policies of the Board.
- 2. Any individual arrangement, agreement or contract between the Board and an individual teacher, heretofore executed, shall be subject to and consistent with the

terms and conditions of the Agreement and any individual arrangement, agreement or contract hereafter executed shall be expressly made subject to and consistent with the terms of this or subsequent agreements to be executed by the parties. If any individual arrangement, agreement or contract contains any language inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement during its duration, shall be controlling.

- 3. If any provision of the Agreement or any application of the Agreement to any teacher or group of teachers shall be found contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.
- 4. Copies of this Agreement shall be printed at the expense of the Board and given to all teachers now employed or hereafter employed by the Board within two (2) weeks after its execution or employment if that occurs later. The Association will act as the distributor of the Agreement to all currently employed teachers.
- 5. There will be no reprisals of any kind taken against any teacher by reason of his/her membership in the Association or participation in any of its activities.
- 6. As negotiation meetings between the Board and the Association are scheduled during a school day, the representatives of the Association will be relieved from all regular duties necessary to permit their participation in such meetings. Such relief from duty shall not involve any loss of pay. When it is necessary for representatives of the Association to schedule meetings during the school day in order to prepare for mediation and/or fact-finding, not more than seven (7) such representatives at any one time will, upon notice to the Superintendent of Schools by the President of the Association, be released as necessary in order to permit participation in these meetings. Such meetings shall not exceed two (2) days in any school year. When it is necessary, pursuant to the Grievance Procedure, for a member of the Grievance Committee or other representative designated by the Association to investigate a grievance or attend a grievance meeting or hearing he or she will be released without loss of pay as necessary in order to permit participation in the foregoing activities.

Any teacher whose appearance in such investigations, meetings, or hearings as a witness is necessary will be accorded the same right. The Association agrees that those rights will not be abused.

- 7. The Board will provide each teacher with a copy of the Board of Education Bylaws.
- 8. Effective June 30, 2007, teachers who do not currently have non-resident students attending the District tuition free, will not be eligible to have non-resident students attend the District tuition free in the future.

ARTICLE XXVIII: Salaries & Salary Schedules

A. Procedures for Administering the Schedules

The Agreement on Teachers Salary Schedules for the 2015-2016 through 2018-2019 school years as set forth in Exhibit D shall apply to all teachers. Supplemental compensation will be paid as set forth in this Article and attached hereto as Exhibit E.

B. Salary Schedules

During the life of this agreement, teacher salaries shall be increased in the following manner (Salary Schedules are attached hereto as Exhibit D):

2019-2020: Steps 1-17: 1.85% increase to salary schedule

Step 18: 2.25% increase to salary schedule

2020-2021: Steps 1-18: 1.25%-1.85% increase to salary schedule*

2021-2022: Steps 1-18: 1.25%-1.85% increase to salary schedule*

2022-2023: Steps 1-18: 1.25%-1.85% increase to salary schedule*

C. Method of Payment

Teachers may choose in June of each year one of the following methods of payment for professional services:

1. Payments made in twenty (20) equal bi-weekly payments, plus two (2) one-half (1/2) payments (first and last checks).

OR

- 2. Payments made in twenty (20) equal bi-weekly payments, plus one (1) one-half (1/2) payment (first check in September) and one (1) lump sum payment equal to five and one-half (5 ½) bi-weekly payments. Lump sum payment will be made on last pay date in June.
- 3. Substitute teachers will be paid on a bi-weekly basis.

D. Longevity Increments

Longevity increments shall be paid as follows:

^{*} Actual percentage based on CPI, which refers to the CPI figure used to determine the tax levy limit for school district budgets pursuant to Education Law §2023-a.

Years of Service	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
16 through 19	\$2,642	\$2,642	\$2,642	\$2,642
20 through 24	\$5,284	\$5,284	\$5,284	\$5,284
25 through 29	\$7,921	\$7,921	\$7,921	\$7,921
30 and after	\$10,600	\$10,600	\$10,600	\$10,600

For unit members hired on or after July 1, 2015, longevity shall include only years of teaching service in the Harrison Central School District.

E. Adult Education

Teachers of Adult Education courses shall be paid in accordance with the rates set forth in Exhibit E.

F. Tutorial

Rates for Home Tutoring shall be paid in accordance with the rates set forth in Exhibit E.

Tutorial assignments will be given to volunteers acceptable to the Superintendent. If there are no volunteers, the Superintendent and the Association will meet and try to work out alternatives.

G. Guidance Counselors and Psychologists

Guidance Counselors and Psychologists shall be paid additional compensation in accordance with the rates set forth in Exhibit E.

The Guidance Counselors' school year shall be the same as that of the teachers with the exception that they may be required to work up to a total of five (5) of these days between the period from August 27th to the beginning of school and/or from the conclusion of school to July 7th.

H. Department Chairpersons and Chair/Liaisons

Compensation paid to Department Chairpersons and Chair/Liaisons shall be paid in accordance with the rates set forth in Exhibit E.

I. Salary Schedule for Summer School Employment

Compensation shall be paid for each course taught. Summer school salaries shall be paid in accordance with the rates set forth in Exhibit F.

J. Extra-Curricular Stipends

1. For the 2010-11 school year, the stipends paid to extracurricular club advisors shall be in accordance with the rates specified in Exhibit C. Effective with the

2011-12 school year and thereafter, the stipends paid to extracurricular club advisors shall be based on the total number of hours allocated to the club and whether or not the club will include a product, performance, or field trip (see Exhibit B).

- 2. Each school year, the building principal shall have the discretion to determine the number of hours to be allocated to each club and whether or not each club will include a product, performance, and/or field trip.
- 3. The posting for extracurricular clubs shall list the total number of hours required for the club, whether or not the club includes a product, performance, or field trip, and the stipend to be paid to the club advisor.
- 4. In the event a single stipend is allocated for an extracurricular club and there are two or more individuals who wish to serve as the club advisors, said individuals may split the advisor responsibilities and the stipend, with the endorsement of the building principal and Board of Education appointment.
- 5. In the event a club advisor is absent for more than five (5) consecutive school days, the extracurricular club stipend will be pro-rated accordingly. However, the principal will have the discretion to determine, with input from the club advisor, if the club's goals can be achieved by the advisor in the event of his/her absence without pro-rating the stipend.
- 6. Individuals appointed as club advisors shall be responsible for maintaining sign-in sheets for each club meeting and shall be required to provide completed sign-in sheets to the building principal upon request.

K. Coaching Stipend Schedule

- 1. Coaching Salary Stipends shall be paid in accordance with the rates set forth in Exhibit C.
- 2. Step increments will be credited for the number of years of coaching experience in the Harrison School District only.
- 3. A step increment will be credited for each full season of experience within the same sport (boys or girls). Step increments will be credited only when coaching within the same sport, irrespective of levels, whether in middle school or high school.
- 4. Teachers who move from one (1) sport to another will begin at *Step 1* within the new sport.
- 5. EXPERIENCE SCHEDULE

Step 1	1 - 4 Years	100%
Step 2	Year 5	110%
Step 3	6 - 9 Years	115%
Step 4	10 + Years	120%

L. Non-Instructional Duties

A teacher shall be paid additional compensation in accordance with the rates set forth in Exhibit E for any non-instructional duties that are not required elsewhere in this Agreement.

M. Chaperoning

Effective July 1, 2013, and thereafter, chaperoning work completed outside the regular work day shall be paid on an hourly basis, with the exception that if a teacher works less than a full hour or any partial hour, payment for said partial hours shall be paid in fifteen (15) minute increments, and the minutes worked shall be rounded up to the nearest quarter hour (i.e., if a teacher works 1-14 minutes, the teacher shall be paid for 15 minutes; if a teacher works 16-29 minutes, the teacher shall be paid for 30 minutes; if a teacher works 1 hour and 47 minutes, the teacher shall be paid for 2 hours).

N. Overnight Field Trips

Teachers who supervise a co-curricular overnight field trip sponsored and approved by the Board of Education shall receive <u>per diem</u> stipends for each over night during the trip, to a maximum of three (3) over nights per trip in accordance with the rates set forth in Exhibit E. Examples of such co-curricular trips include, but are not limited to, band competitions, language/cultural student exchanges, Nature's Classroom, Greenkill, and the annual Eighth Grade trip to Washington, D.C.

O. Tenure Award

Teachers who receive tenure in the District shall receive a one-time, non-cumulative cash payment of \$1,000. Said award shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the teacher's tenure effective date.

P. Attendance Award

Teachers who have been absent for a total of two (2) or fewer sick, personal, and family illness days in a given school year shall receive one-time, non-cumulative payment of \$500. Said payment shall be made to the teacher in the first full paycheck following the year of exceptional attendance.

Q. International Baccalaureate (IB) Program Coordinator

The District reserves the right to appoint an IB Program Coordinator on an annual basis to fulfill the following responsibilities:

- a. Attending training related to the role of IB Coordinator.
- b. Serving as a liaison to building and district administrators to facilitate the implementation of the IB program.
- c. Organizing and facilitating site visits conducted by IBO.
- d. Interfacing with IBIS, the online curriculum centre (OCC) and any other information and communication technology (ICT) used by Diploma Programme schools to meet the requirements and comply with the general regulations.
- e. Ensuring that teachers are equipped with OCC passwords, the current issue of *Diploma Programme coordinator notes*, pages from the *Vade Mecum* relevant to their subjects, and other appropriate IBO publications.
- f. Working with the Creativity, Action, Service (CAS) Coordinator to ensure consistent implementation of the CAS requirements.
- g. Coordinating the administration of the extended essay (in consultation with the Extended Essay Coordinator).
- h. Ensuring timely and accurate registration of candidates for examinations (in partnership with Guidance Department).
- i. Ensuring that internal assessment in all subjects and TOK procedures are carried out properly including, where necessary, internal moderation (in partnership with classroom teachers and Supervisors).
- j. Organizing the secure conduct of the examinations and examination retakes, including mock examinations, orals, arrangements for visiting examiners, prompt mailing of examination papers and ensuring that students obtain their results (in partnership with classroom teachers and the Guidance Department).
- k. Informing students of IBO services, for example: inquiry upon results, university recognition, university transcripts and legalization of diplomas (in partnership with Guidance Department).
- 1. Giving public presentations to promote and provide updates on the progress of the IB program.
- m. Ensuring that curricular and co-curricular activities are aligned to support the mission, philosophy, and goals of the IB program.
- n. Maintaining complete and accurate records.

The individual appointed to serve as the IB Program Coordinator shall receive the stipend specified in Exhibit E and shall be relieved of his/her non-instructional duty and provided with 0.4 FTE release time.

R. Community Action Service (CAS) Coordinator

The District reserves the right to appoint a CAS Coordinator on an annual basis to fulfill the following responsibilities:

a. Ensuring the aims and objectives of the program are implemented according to IBO standards of practice.

- b. Providing guidance and mentoring to students regarding CAS requirements.
- c. Maintaining all records and evidence in compliance with the guidelines set forth by IBO.
- d. Building a network of service partners for students.
- e. Developing systems and structures for CAS administration in collaboration with school leaders and the IB Coordinator.
- f. Participating in student and/or parent presentations, meetings and forums to ensure that all students are clearly informed about the program and will, as appropriate, facilitate ongoing communication with the assistance of school counselors, the IB Coordinator and other staff.
- g. Participating in presentation to the Board of Education to promote and provide updates on the progress of the IB program.
- h. Interfacing with IBNET and the online curriculum centre (OCC) to meet CAS requirements.
- i. Communicate up to date information about CAS events, activities and program changes to the IB Coordinator, school administrators and IB teachers, as required.
- j. Transitioning the WISE mentor program into the CAS program.
- k. Maintaining complete and accurate records.

The individual appointed to serve as the CAS Coordinator shall receive the stipend specified in Exhibit E and shall be relieved of his/her non-instructional duty.

S. Extended Essay (IBEE) Coordinator

The District reserves the right to appoint an IBEE Coordinator on an annual basis to fulfill the following responsibilities:

- a. Provide support to IB Diploma Program EE Candidates:
 - i. Create, maintain and update student EE handbook and website
 - ii. Coordinate quality review of EE submissions e.g. perform originality checks on student essays through online citation platforms
 - iii. Advise and consult with students on topic selection and supervisor choice in accord with IB regulations and high school policy
 - iv. Coordinate Viva Voce interviews for students at the conclusion of the Extended Essay process
- b. Provide support to IB Diploma Program EE Supervisors:
 - i. Coordinate recruitment and matching of IB supervisors to students
 - ii. Provide training and resources to supervisors and potential supervisors regarding the EE process, IBO expectations, subject area guidelines and subject area reports
 - iii. Communicate EE schedules and expectations to supervisors
 - iv. Monitor, review, and analyze EE assessment data
 - v. Collaborate with IB Coordinator and CAS Coordinator in parent outreach and ongoing school-parent communication

vi. Assist the IB Coordinator in the final submission of extended essays to the IBO

The individual appointed to serve as the IB EE Coordinator shall receive the stipend specified in Exhibit E and shall be relieved of his/her non-instructional duty.

T. Middle Years Program (MYP) Coordinator

The District reserves the right to appoint an MYP Coordinator on an annual basis to fulfill the following job responsibilities:

- a. Serving as primary point of contact with the IBO, ensuring that administrators and faculty have relevant, up to date information about MYP curriculum, regulations and deadlines
- b. Partnering with curriculum directors to facilitate curriculum development
- c. Supporting teachers in the development of MYP units of study and advancing their pedagogical practice in the classroom
- d. Supporting the successful implementation of the authorization process
- e. Implementing a systematic approach to communication with all stakeholders including faculty, parents and students
- f. Articulating with the IB Diploma Program, CAS and EE Coordinators
- g. Assisting in development of school policy aligned to IB philosophy
- h. Advising district and building leaders about MYP-related budgets

The individual appointed to serve as the IB Program Coordinator shall receive the stipend specified in Exhibit E and shall be relieved of his/her non-instructional duty and provided with 1.0 FTE release time.

U. IB MYP Personal Project

Effective with the 2020-21 school year, teachers may be assigned students to supervise their IB MYP Personal Projects. Teachers assigned to supervise IB MYP Personal Projects shall receive a stipend of \$300 for every six (6) students they supervise. Said stipend shall be pro-rated for supervising fewer than six (6) students. No later than June 30, 2021, the District and the Association agree to reopen negotiations on this provision.

V. Instructional Specialists

The District reserves the right to appoint Instructional Specialist on an annual basis to fulfill the following job responsibilities:

- a. Designing and delivering professional development for classroom teachers and related service providers;
- b. Coaching, collaborating, and consulting with classroom teachers on lesson design, utilizing student assessment data to inform instruction, and implementing instructional strategies learned through professional development workshops;

- c. Teaching and/or co-teaching model lessons for teachers to demonstrate instructional best practices and intervention strategies;
- d. Co-facilitating RtI meetings at the building level and making recommendations to the principal regarding student services;
- e. Assisting the principal(s) to address student behavior issues as needed
- f. Working under the direction of the principal(s) to facilitate grade-level/department meetings;
- g. Participating in PTA presentations and/or Board of Education presentations as needed;
- h. Assisting administrators in the evaluation and/or development of programs; and
- i. Assisting with the coordination of testing (NYS examinations, F&P, MAP, etc.).

The individual(s) appointed to serve as Instructional Specialist(s) shall receive the stipend specified in Exhibit E and shall be relieved of his/her non-instructional duty and provided with 1.0 FTE release time. Instructional Specialists shall also work up to twenty (20) days during the summer at the direction of the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee, and receive their contractual daily rate of pay for each day worked.

EXHIBIT A

The following rules and regulations shall govern the implementation of provisional time as provided in Article XI(D)(2) of the contract for the school year.

General Rules and Regulations

- 1. All work performed under the provisional time as described in Article XI(D)(2) may be assigned to be performed anywhere within the school district; however, academic intervention services, RTI support, and enrichment will be limited to students who are assigned to the teacher's case load during the school day. No more than seven (7) students may be assigned to an AIS class.
- 2. Attendance is mandatory and compliance with the obligations of the provisional time shall be monitored. The building principal and/or the Superintendent or his/her designee will determine activities to be conducted.
- 3. Professionally related activities associated with the provisional time may be assigned before or after school, in consultation with the teacher. To the greatest extent practicable, the teacher's preferences will be considered in developing the schedule for professionally related activities.
- 4. For those teachers such as physical education teachers, counselors, et al, who are unable to fulfill this requirement at the regular time as provided for in this Agreement, other appropriate equivalent hours will be arranged as approved by the Superintendent of Schools.
- 5. Professionally related activities shall be scheduled contiguously with the school day (i.e., immediately before or after school). Travel time, when applicable, will be included as part of the provisional time.
- 6. Proper advance notice of at least two (2) school days will be provided for assigning activities, when practicable.
- 7. Teachers shall be exempted from provisional time one week per month during the week when contractual two-hour professional development occurs.
- 8. When practicable, all Tuesdays and Thursdays will be reserved for professionally related activities.
- 9. Unit members shall not be required to keep a log regarding their use of the provisional time.

EXHIBIT B

Exctraccuricular clubs will be posted on the District website and the posting will include the total hours; whether or not there is a product, performance, or fieldtrip; and the stipend for each club.

Extracurricular Club Stipends

	0 (1.5%) alculation	Base Stipend increases by 10% for Product,								
Superiu C	alculation	Perform	ance, or Fi	eld Trip						
Hours	Base	+10%	+20%	+30%						
20-30	\$1,620	\$1,782	\$1,944	\$2,106						
31-40	\$2,268	\$2,495	\$2,721	\$2,948						
41-50	\$2,916	\$3,207	\$3,499	\$3,791						
51-60	\$3,564	\$3,920	\$4,277	\$4,633						
61-75	\$4,406	\$4,847	\$5,287	\$5,728						
76-100	\$5,637	\$6,201	\$6,765	\$7,328						
100+	\$6,480	\$7,128	\$7,776	\$8,424						
		Raco Stin	end increa	sees by						
2020-21	(1.25%)	-	for Produc							
Stipend C	alculation		nce, or Fie							
Hours	Base	+10%	+20%	+30%						
20-30	\$1,640	\$1,804	\$1,968	\$2,132						
31-40	\$2,296	\$2,526	\$2,755	\$2,985						
41-50	\$2,952	\$3,248	\$3,543	\$3,838						
51-60	\$3,608	\$3,969	\$4,330	\$4,691						
61-75	\$4,461	\$4,907	\$5,353	\$5,800						
76-100	\$5,708	\$6,279	\$6,849	\$7,420						
100+	\$6,561	\$7,217	\$7,873	\$8,529						
200	40,000	+ - /	4.,	40,023						
2021-22	(1.25%)		end increa							
2021-22 Stinend C			end increa for Produc							
2021-22 Stipend Ca		10%		t,						
	lculation Base	10% Performa +10%	for Produc nce, or Fie +20%	t, ld Trip +30%						
Stipend Ca	Base \$1,661	10% Performa +10% \$1,827	for Produc nce, or Fie +20% \$1,993	t, ld Trip +30% \$2,159						
Stipend Ca Hours	Base \$1,661 \$2,325	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557	for Produc nce, or Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790	t, ld Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022						
Stipend Ca Hours 20-30	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288	for Produc nce, or Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587	t, ld Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886						
Stipend Ca Hours 20-30 31-40	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019	for Production nce, or Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587 \$4,384	t, ld Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969	for Production for Pr	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75 76-100	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517 \$5,779	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969 \$6,357	for Production rote, or Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587 \$4,384 \$5,420 \$6,935	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872 \$7,513						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969	for Production for Pr	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75 76-100 100+	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517 \$5,779 \$6,643	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969 \$6,357 \$7,307	for Production for Production for Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587 \$4,384 \$5,420 \$6,935 \$7,971	t, ld Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872 \$7,513 \$8,635						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75 76-100 100+	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517 \$5,779 \$6,643	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969 \$6,357 \$7,307 Base Stipe	for Production for Production for Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587 \$4,384 \$5,420 \$6,935 \$7,971	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872 \$7,513 \$8,635						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75 76-100 100+	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517 \$5,779 \$6,643	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969 \$6,357 \$7,307 Base Stipe	for Product nce, or Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587 \$4,384 \$5,420 \$6,935 \$7,971 end increase for Product	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872 \$7,513 \$8,635 ses by						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75 76-100 100+	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517 \$5,779 \$6,643	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969 \$6,357 \$7,307 Base Stipe	for Production for Production for Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587 \$4,384 \$5,420 \$6,935 \$7,971	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872 \$7,513 \$8,635 ses by						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75 76-100 100+ 2022-23 (Stipend Car	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517 \$5,779 \$6,643 (1.25%)	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969 \$6,357 \$7,307 Base Stipe 10% F	for Product nce, or Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587 \$4,384 \$5,420 \$6,935 \$7,971 end increase for Product nce, or Fiel	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872 \$7,513 \$8,635 sees by t, d Trip						
Stipend Ca Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75 76-100 100+ 2022-23 (Stipend Called Hours	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517 \$5,779 \$6,643 (1.25%) Iculation	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969 \$6,357 \$7,307 Base Stipe 10% { Performan +10%	for Product nce, or Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587 \$4,384 \$5,420 \$6,935 \$7,971 end increase for Product nce, or Fiel +20%	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872 \$7,513 \$8,635 sees by t, d Trip +30% \$2,186						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75 76-100 100+ 2022-23 (Stipend Ca Hours 20-30	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517 \$5,779 \$6,643 (1.25%) Iculation Base \$1,681	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969 \$6,357 \$7,307 Base Stipe 10% { Performal +10% \$1,850	for Product nce, or Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587 \$4,384 \$5,420 \$6,935 \$7,971 end increase for Product nce, or Fiel +20% \$2,018	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872 \$7,513 \$8,635 ses by t, d Trip +30%						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75 76-100 100+ 2022-23 (Stipend Ca Hours 20-30 31-40	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517 \$5,779 \$6,643 (1.25%) Iculation Base \$1,681 \$2,354	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969 \$6,357 \$7,307 Base Stipe 10% † Performan +10% \$1,850 \$2,589	for Production for Pr	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872 \$7,513 \$8,635 ses by t, d Trip +30% \$2,186 \$3,060						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75 76-100 100+ 2022-23 (Stipend Ca Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517 \$5,779 \$6,643 (1.25%) Iculation Base \$1,681 \$2,354 \$3,027	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969 \$6,357 \$7,307 Base Stipe 10% \$1,850 \$1,850 \$2,589 \$3,329	for Product nce, or Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587 \$4,384 \$5,420 \$6,935 \$7,971 end increase for Product nce, or Fiel +20% \$2,018 \$2,825 \$3,632	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872 \$7,513 \$8,635 ses by t, d Trip +30% \$2,186 \$3,060 \$3,935						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75 76-100 100+ 2022-23 (Stipend Ca Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517 \$5,779 \$6,643 (1.25%) Iculation Base \$1,681 \$2,354 \$3,027 \$3,699	10% Performa +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969 \$6,357 \$7,307 Base Stipe 10% \$1,850 \$2,589 \$3,329 \$4,069	for Product nce, or Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587 \$4,384 \$5,420 \$6,935 \$7,971 end increase for Product nce, or Fiel +20% \$2,018 \$2,825 \$3,632 \$4,439	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872 \$7,513 \$8,635 ses by t, d Trip +30% \$2,186 \$3,060 \$3,935 \$4,809						
Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75 76-100 100+ 2022-23 (Stipend Ca Hours 20-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-75	Base \$1,661 \$2,325 \$2,989 \$3,653 \$4,517 \$5,779 \$6,643 (1.25%) Iculation Base \$1,681 \$2,354 \$3,027 \$3,699 \$4,573	10% Performal +10% \$1,827 \$2,557 \$3,288 \$4,019 \$4,969 \$6,357 \$7,307 Base Stipe 10% \$1,850 \$2,589 \$3,329 \$4,069 \$5,031	for Product nce, or Fie +20% \$1,993 \$2,790 \$3,587 \$4,384 \$5,420 \$6,935 \$7,971 end increase for Product nce, or Fiel +20% \$2,018 \$2,825 \$3,632 \$4,439 \$5,488	t, Id Trip +30% \$2,159 \$3,022 \$3,886 \$4,749 \$5,872 \$7,513 \$8,635 ses by t, d Trip +30% \$2,186 \$3,060 \$3,935 \$4,809 \$5,945						

EXTRACURRICULAR SALARY SCHEDULE - SPORTS

			2019-20		2020-21		2021-22		2022-23
			1.50%		1.25%		1.25%		1.25%
BASEBALL	VARSITY	-5	8,489	9 9		\$		\$	
BASEBALL	ASST VARSITY		5,942					-	
BASEBALL	JUNIOR VARSITY	\$	6,367	\$	6,446	\$			
BASEBALL	ASST JUNIOR VARSITY	9	4,775	\$	4,835	\$	4,895		
BASEBALL	GRADE 9	\$		\$	5,157	\$	5,222	\$	
BASEBALL	GRADE 7 & 8	\$		\$	5,157	\$	5,222	\$	5,287
BASEBALL	ASST GRADE 7 & 8	\$	3,820	\$	3,868	\$	3,916	\$	3,965
BASKETBALL	VARSITY	\$	9,231	\$	9,347	\$	9,464	\$	9,582
BASKETBALL	ASST VARSITY	\$				\$	6,624		6,707
BASKETBALL	JUNIOR VARSITY	\$				\$	7,098		7,186
BASKETBALL	GRADE 9	\$				\$	5,678	\$	5,749
BASKETBALL	GRADES 7 & 8	\$		\$		\$	5,678	\$	5,749
BOWLING	VARSITY	\$	4,602	\$	4,659	\$	4,717	\$	4,776
CHEERLEADING	VARSITY	\$	4,244	\$	4,297	\$	4,351	\$	4,405
CHEERLEADING	ASST VARSITY	\$		\$		\$	3,045	\$	3,084
CHEERLEADING	JUNIOR VARSITY	\$	3,183	\$	3,223	\$	3,263	\$	3,304
CROSS-COUNTRY	VARSITY	\$	6,897	\$	6,984	\$	7,071	\$	7,159
CROSS-COUNTRY	ASST VARSITY	\$	4,828	\$	4,889	\$	4,950	\$	5,012
CROSS-COUNTRY	GRADES 7 & 8	\$	4,138	\$	4,190	\$	4,243	\$	4,296
FIELD HOCKEY	VARSITY	\$	7,958	\$	8,058	\$	8,158	\$	8,260
FIELD HOCKEY	ASST VARSITY	\$	5,571	\$	5,640	\$	5,711	φ \$	5,782
FIELD HOCKEY	JUNIOR VARSITY	\$	5,969	\$	6,043	\$	6,119	φ \$	6,195
FIELD HOCKEY	GRADES 7 & 8	\$	4,775	\$	4,835	φ \$	4,895	\$	4,956
FOOTBALL	VADOITV	•	40.040		10 7 10			_	
FOOTBALL	VARSITY	\$	10,610	\$	10,743	\$	10,877	\$	11,013
	ASST VARSITY	\$	7,427	\$	7,520	\$	7,614	\$	7,709
FOOTBALL	JUNIOR VARSITY	\$	7,958	\$	8,057	\$	8,158	\$	8,260
FOOTBALL	ASST JUNIOR VARSITY	\$	5,968	\$	6,043	\$	6,118	\$	6,195
FOOTBALL	GRADES 7 & 8	\$	6,366	\$	6,446	\$	6,526	\$	6,608
FOOTBALL	ASST GRADES 7 & 8	\$	4,775	\$	4,834	\$	4,895	\$	4,9 5 6
GOLF	VARSITY	\$	5,569	\$	5,639	\$	5,710	\$	5,781
HOCKEY	VARSITY	\$	7,958	\$	8,058	\$	8,158	\$	8,260
HOCKEY	ASST VARSITY	\$	5,571	\$	5,640	\$	5,711	\$	5,782
HOCKEY	GRADES 7, 8 & 9	\$	4,775	\$	4,835	\$	4,895	\$	4,956
HOCKEY	ASST GRADES 7, 8 & 9	\$	3,581	\$	3,626	\$	3,671	\$	3,717
LACROSSE	VARSITY	\$	8,489	\$	8,595	\$	8,703	\$	8,811
LACROSSE	ASST VARSITY	\$	5,942		6,017		6,092		6,168
LACROSSE	JUNIOR VARSITY	\$	6,367		6,446		6,527		6,609
LACROSSE	ASST JUNIOR VARSITY	\$	4,775		4,835		4,895		4,956
LACROSSE	GRADES 7 & 8	\$	5,093		5,157		5,222		5,287
LACROSSE	ASST GRADES 7 & 8	\$	3,820		3,868		3,916		3,965
					-				-

SOCCER	VARSITY		¢	7.050						
SOCCER	ASST VARSITY		\$ \$	7,958 5,571				8,158		
SOCCER	JUNIOR VARSITY		\$	5,969				5,711		
SOCCER	GRADES 7 & 8		\$	4,775		•		6,119		•
			Ψ	4,773	Ψ	4,030	\$	4,895	\$	4,956
SOFTBALL	VARSITY		\$	8,489	\$	8,595	\$	8,703	\$	8,811
SOFTBALL	ASST VARSITY		\$	5,942	\$					
SOFTBALL	JUNIOR VARSITY		\$	6,367		•		•	-	
SOFTBALL	ASST JUNIOR VARSITY		\$	4,775	\$	-		,	-	
SOFTBALL	GRADES 7 & 8		\$	5,093	\$,		,
SOFTBALL	ASST GRADES 7 & 8		\$	3,820	\$	3,868		•		•
SWIMMING							·	,	7	-,
-	VARSITY		\$	7,958	\$	8,058	\$	8,158	\$	8,260
SWIMMING	ASST VARSITY		\$	5,571	\$	5,640	\$	5,711	\$	5,782
TENNIS	VARSITY		\$	6 907	¢	C 004	.	7.074		=
TENNIS	JUNIOR VARSITY		\$	6,897 5,173	\$	6,984	\$	7,071	\$	7,159
	Tomor Willow		φ	5,175	\$	5,238	\$	5,303	\$	5,369
TRACK	VARSITY		\$	8,489	\$	8,595	\$	8,703	\$	8,811
TRACK	ASST VARSITY		\$	5,942	\$	6,017	\$	6,092	\$	6,168
TRACK	GRADES 7 & 8		\$	5,093	\$	5,157	\$	5,222	\$	5,287
TRACK	ASST GRADES 7 & 8		\$	3,820	\$	3,868	\$	3,916	\$	3,965
VOLLEYBALL	VADCITY		_							
VOLLEYBALL	VARSITY ASST VARSITY		\$	7,958	\$	8,058	\$	8,158	\$	8,260
VOLLEYBALL			\$	5,571	\$	5,640	\$	5,711	\$	5,782
VOLLEYBALL	JUNIOR VARSITY		\$	5,969	\$	6,043	\$	6,119	\$	6,195
VOLLETBALL	GRADES 7 & 8	,	\$	4,775	\$	4,835	\$	4,895	\$	4,956
WRESTLING	VARSITY	9	5	9,231	\$	9,347	\$	9,464	¢	0.500
WRESTLING	ASST VARSITY		5	6,462	\$	6,543	φ \$	6,624	\$ \$	9,582
WRESTLING	JUNIOR VARSITY		5	6,924	\$	7,010	\$	7,098	э \$	6,707
WRESTLING	GRADES 7 & 8	4		5,539	\$	5,608	\$	5,678	\$	7,186
WRESTLING	ASST GRADES 7 & 8	4		4,154	\$	4,206	\$	4,259		5,749
		*	,	7,107	Ψ	4,200	φ	4,209	\$	4,312
INTO A SELECTION OF CO.										
INTRAMURALS										
20 sessions for 1-1/2	nours each session	\$		1,634	\$	1,654	\$	1,675	\$	1,696
ALL SPORTS										
	RVISOR (PER SEASON)	\$		5 040	¢	6.044	¢	C 000	c	0.405
HHS ATHLETIC SUPE	RVISOR (PER SEASON)	φ \$		6,480		6,561		6,089		6,165
		φ		0,400	φ	0,501	Φ	6,643	Ф	6,726

EXTENDED SEASON - Per diem rate of 1/60th of applicable stipend

Harrison Central School District
Teacher Salary Table 2019-20
Stens 1-17 (1.85%) sepa 46 (2.950)

		DHD	\$96 797	\$99,644	\$102,491	\$105 338	\$108 19E	¢111,021	\$111,031 \$442.0=0	\$113,878	\$116,725	\$119,572	\$122,419	\$125,265	\$128,112	\$130,959	\$133,806	\$136,653	\$139,500 \$142.346	\$145,765
	BA + 115	MA + 75	\$93,787	\$96,634	\$99,481	\$102,327	\$105.174	\$108.021	\$110 060	\$110 JIL		\$110 400 \$110 400					\$122 CA2			\$142,745
	BA + 100	MA +60	\$90,782	\$93,629	\$96,475	\$99,322	\$102,169	\$105,016	\$107.863	\$110 710	\$113.556	\$116.403	\$119.250	\$122.097	\$124,944	\$127,790	\$130,637	\$133 484	\$136,331	\$139,719
	BA + 90		\$87,744	\$90,590	\$93,437	\$96,284	\$99,131	\$101,978	\$104,824	\$107,671	\$110,518	\$113,365	\$116,212	\$119,058	\$121,905	\$124,752	\$127,599	\$130,446	\$133,293	\$136,680
		MA + 45	\$86,222	589,069	\$91,915	\$94,762	\$97,609	\$100,456	\$103,303	\$106,149	\$108,996	\$111,843	\$114,690	\$117,537	\$120,384	\$123,230	\$126,077	\$128,924	\$131,771	\$135,157
25%)	BA + 80	-	\$84,703	587,549	490,396	\$93,243	596,090	598,937	\$101,784	\$104,630	\$107,477	\$110,324	\$113,171	\$116,018	\$118,864	\$121,711		\$127,405		879,5576
6) Step 18 (2	BA + 70	אואו ליפל	\$81,660 \$87,507	λυτ,τυτ	¢00,000	102,0c¢	433,040	495,894	\$98,741	\$101,588	\$104,435	\$107,282	\$110,129	\$112,975					\$127,209	
Steps 1-17 (1.85%) Step 18 (2.25%)	BA + 60	670 603	\$81,579	\$84.375	\$87,222	\$90.069	\$92.015	COF 100	592,763	598,610	\$101,456	\$104,303	\$107,150					12	\$124,231	
Steps	MA + 15	\$77 164	\$80,011	\$82,858	\$85,704	\$88,551	\$91.398	\$94.245	C42,405	260,164	¢102,009	\$10E C22	\$203,001¢	\$100,479 \$111 276	\$114 173	¢114,175			\$126,055	
	BA + 50	\$75,649	\$78,496	\$81,343	\$84,189	\$87,036	\$89,883	\$92.730	\$95,577	\$98.472	\$101.270	\$104 117	\$106 964	\$109.811	\$112,657	\$115 504	\$118 351	\$121 100	\$124,523	
BA + 40	MA	\$72,589	\$75,436	\$78,283	\$81,130	\$83,977	\$86,823	\$89,670	\$92,517	\$95.364	\$98,211	\$101,058	\$103,904	\$106,751	\$109,598	\$112,445				, C
	BA + 30	\$69,558	\$72,127	\$74,696	\$77,265	\$79,834	\$82,403	\$84,972	\$87,541	\$90,110	\$92,680	\$95,249	\$97,818	\$100,387			\$108,094			Ib - Anv nev
	BA	\$67,589	\$70,436	\$73,283	\$76,130	578,977	\$81,823	\$84,670	\$87,517	\$90,364	\$93,211	\$36,058	\$98,904	\$101,751	\$104,598	\$107,445	\$110,292	\$113,138	\$116,467	Article XXIX B1b - Any new hiros
	STEP	г··I	7 1	n e	‡ r	Λ (ا م	/	∞	6 0	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	Ar

Article XXIX B1b - Any new hiree recommended for appointment who has not yet completed the requirements for a MA degree shall be hired at a salary \$5,000 less than MA of the appropriate step.

Harrison Central School District Teacher Salary Table 2020-21

מחס	ran Duri																	
BA + 100 BA + 115 MA +60 MA + 75	C/ - CIM																	
BA + 90 BA + 100 BA + 115 MA +60 MA + 75	201 7																	
BA + 90																		
MA + 45								EASE										
BA + 80								I INCK	MINED									
BA + 70 MA + 30							/ V + I & J \	SALARY PERCENIAGE INCREASE	TO BE DETERMINED									
BA + 60							V 010	Y PEK	TO BE									
MA + 15							7 1 7 2	SALA										
BA + 50																		
BA + 40 MA																		
BA + 30																		
BA																		
STEP	H	2	m	4	Ŋ	9	7	∞	6	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18

Article XXIX B1b - Any new hiree recommended for appointment who has not yet completed the requirements for a MA degree shall be hired at a salary \$5,000 less than MA of the appropriate step. Harrison Central School District Teacher Salary Table 2029-21

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	出版を包括は有法を対象を				CPIIn	CPI Increase 1.81%	%1					
		8A+40		のなるないのではない	BA+60	RA + 70	DA. OA	The Charles of the Control of the Co				
BA	BA+30	MA	BA + 50	MA + 15	3	MA + 20	BA+80		BA+90	BA+100	BA+115	京 法 一
						OC. CHI	The special property of the	MA+45		MA+60	MA + 75	CHd
	\$70,817	\$73,903	\$77.018	£78 564	400	1000						
	\$73,432	\$76,802	\$79.916	\$81 450	\$00,100	\$63,138	\$86,236	\$87,782	\$89,332	\$92,425	\$95.485	\$98 540
	\$76,048	\$79.700	\$82 845	404 257	\$00,004	\$86,037	\$89,134	\$90,631	\$92,230	\$95,323	898 383	6404 440
では、	\$78.664	\$82 59R		100,400	\$85,903	\$88,935	\$92,032	\$93,579	\$95,128	\$98 222	\$104 284	01010
	\$81.279	\$85 497		007,100	\$88,801	\$91,834	\$94,931	\$96,477	\$98.027	\$101 120	6404400	040,040
ののは、 というというに	\$83.805	\$00 00E	10,000	\$90,154	\$91,699	\$94,732	\$97,829	\$99.376	\$100 925	6101010	4104,100	\$107,244
	400,000	000,000	010,186	\$93,052	\$94,598	\$97,630	\$100.727	8402 27A	6402 000	0101010	\$10,,018	\$110,143
	900,010	\$91,293	\$94,408	\$95,951	\$97.496	\$100 520	6402 606	4104,414	\$103,623	\$106,917	\$109,976	\$113,041
Service of the service of	\$89,126	\$94,192	\$97,306	\$98.849	\$100 394	8402 427	070,000	2/1/2014	\$106,722	\$109,815	\$112,875	\$115,939
	\$91,741	\$97,090	\$100,205	\$101,747	\$103 203	6400000	\$100,524	\$108,071	\$109,620	\$112,713	\$115,773	\$118.838
	\$94,357	\$99,988	\$103.103	\$104 BAB	200,400	070,001	\$109,422	\$110,969	\$112,518	\$115,612	\$118.671	\$424 726
的数据证明是	\$96,973	1.		0404040	9100,191	\$109,224	\$112,321	\$113,867	\$115,417	+	1	6424 604
	\$99 58R	+	4400,000	\$107,544	\$109,089	\$112,122	\$115,219	\$116.766	\$118315	-	+	\$124,034
And and and an area	640000	-	\$106,900	\$110,442	\$111,988	\$115,020	\$118.117	£110 GGA	6404 242	0041,410	-1	\$127,533
		\$108,683	\$111,798	\$113,341	\$114.886	\$117 010	2424 040	4000000	\$17,1214	\$124,307	\$127,366	\$130,431
	\$104,819	\$111,582	\$114,696	\$116 230	\$447 704	20000	010,1214	296,2214	\$124,112	\$127,205	\$130,265	\$133,329
が経済が経済が	\$107,435	\$114,480	+	\$440 427	4400,000	\$120,817	\$123,914	\$125,461	\$127,010	\$130,103	+	6136 220
STATE OF THE PARTY	\$110,051	+	+	6422 020	9120,083	\$123,715	\$126,813	\$128,359	\$129,908	-	+	6420 420
新教教育的	\$112,666	+	10	6424620	\$123,581	\$126,614	\$129,711	\$131,257	\$132,807	+	+	6449 024
新聞を は のませんだっ	1	+	1	+	1	\$129,512	\$132,609	\$134,156	\$135,705	+	+	\$144,024
	٦.	-	7	\$ 120,330	\$129,890	\$132,929	\$136,047	\$137,604	\$139,154	-	+	6440 400
Article YVIV	Article YYIY B45 Am.											\$140,403

Article XXIX B1b • Any new hiree recommended for appointment who has not yet completed the requirements for a MA degree shall be hired at a salary

Harrison Central School District Teacher Salary Table 2021-22

	PHD																		
BA + 115																			
BA + 90 BA + 100 BA + 115	MA +60																		
BA + 90																			
	MA + 45							FASE	1001										
BA + 80								F INCE		MINED									
BA + 70	MA + 30							SALARY DERCENTAGE INCREASE		TO BE DETERMINED									
BA + 60								AV DER		TO BE									
	MA + 15							SAIAI	בן ני										
	BA + 50																		
BA + 40	MA							126											
	BA + 30																		
	BA																		
	STEP	Ħ	2	m	4	ω (٥	7	_∞	6	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18

Article XXIX B1b - Any new hiree recommended for appointment who has not yet completed the requirements for a MA degree shall be hired at a salary \$5,000 less than MA of the appropriate step.

Harrison Central School District Teacher Salary Table 2022-23

			PHD	
, va 007 + Va	CTT + MG OOT + MG	NAME OF ANY OF	MA + 75	
RA + 90				
		MA + 45		
BA + 80				
BA + 70		MA + 30		
BA + 60				
		INIA + TS		
		DA + 50		
BA + 40	777	MIN		
	DA 4 20	F		
	V	נ		
	TED	1	1	•

SALARY PERCENTAGE INCREASE TO BE DETERMINED

12 13 14 Article XXIX B1b - Any new hiree recommended for appointment who has not yet completed the requirements for a MA degree shall be hired at a salary \$5,000 less than MA of the appropriate step.

EXHIBIT E

OTHER COMPENSATION	1.50%	1.25%	1.25%	1.25%
	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
HOURLY RATES Curriculum Projects In Service Training Conducting In-Service Training Adult Education Tutorial Test Analysis* Summer Instructional Rate** Non-Instructional Technical Assistance*** Mentoring****	\$47	\$47	\$48	\$48
	\$47	\$47	\$48	\$48
	\$85	\$86	\$87	\$88
	\$28	\$28	\$28	\$29
	\$48	\$48	\$49	\$49
	\$46	\$47	\$47	\$48
	\$94	\$96	\$97	\$98
	\$40	\$41	\$41	\$42
	\$47	\$47	\$48	\$48

^{*}Review and analysis of State and District administered tests for the purposes of improving instructional practice.

providing interpreting services of translating documents and 4-75 or higher on the ****Denotes the rate paid per in-service credit; teachers on MA+75 or higher on the salary schedule shall receive three (3) in-service credits for serving as a mentor for

a full school year; in 2011-12 the stipend changed to \$43/hour.

	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
CLASS PERIOD RATES	\$9.58	\$9.70	\$9.82	\$9.94
Sub-Luncheon Supervision	\$25.56	\$25.88	\$26.21	\$26.53
Class Coverage	\$19.99	\$20.24	\$20.49	\$20.75
Non-Instructional Duty	\$30.75	\$31.13	\$31.52	\$31.92
Chaperoning	455.70	•		
	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
DAILY RATES	\$55	\$56	\$57	\$58
Double Class Coverage	\$120	\$122	\$123	\$125
Overnight Field Trip	Ų.L.O	•		
DATES	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
SEMESTER RATES	\$2,396	\$2,426	\$2,457	\$2,487
Lunch Period Hallway Coordinator	\$1,999	\$2,024	\$2,049	\$2,075
Hallway Coordinator (Other)	\$2,396	\$2,426	\$2,457	\$2,487
Lunchroom Supervisor	\$1,597	\$1,617	\$1,637	\$1,658
Playground Supervisor	\$2,396	\$2,426	\$2,457	\$2,487
Afternoon Detention Supervisor	\$308	\$311	\$315	\$319
IB Extended Essay Advisors (per student)	7			
DATES (STIDENDS)	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
ANNUAL RATES (STIPENDS)	\$2,075	\$2,101	\$2,128	\$2,154
Psychologists	\$1,918	\$1,942	\$1,966	\$1,991
Guidance Counselors	\$11,998	\$12,148	\$12,299	\$12,453
Department Chairperson	\$1,692	\$1,713	\$1,735	\$1,757
Chair/Liaisons (K-12)	\$2,178	\$2,206	\$2,233	\$2,261
Chair/Liaisons (6-12)	\$11,998	\$12,148	\$12,299	\$12,453
IB Coordinator	\$7,583	\$7,678	\$7,774	\$7,871
IB CAS Coordinator	\$6,407	\$6,487	\$6,569	\$6,651
IB Extended Essay Coordinator	\$5,075	\$5,138	\$5,203	\$5,268
IB MYP Coordinator	\$5,075	\$5,138	\$5,203	\$5,268
Instructional Specialist	*-,-			
0-1150	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22	2022-23
OTHER Stamparton	\$2,762	\$2,797	\$2,832	\$2,867
Summer School - Elementary	\$3,548	\$3,593	\$3,638	\$3,683
Summer School - Middle & High School*	+-,-			

^{**}Does not apply to summer school, the stipends for which are listed below; rate increased to \$87/hour in 2011-12 per side letter agreement.

^{***}May include, but not limited to, artistic design/painting of theatrical sets, musical accompaniment at theatrical productions or ceremonies, providing interpreting services or translating documents into a foreign language.

Agreement between the Harrison Association of Teachers and the Board of Education of the Harrison Central School District is herewith executed by the parties' signatures below.

For

Harrison Association of Teachers

Christopher Tyler, Ph.D.

Harrison Association of Teachers President

For

Harrison CSD Board of Education

Louis N. Wool, Ed.D.

Superintendent of Schools

INDEX

Absences: 41

Adult Education: 69, Exhibit E

AIS: 31, Exhibit A

Arbitration: 66

Assault: 21

Assignments: 14-16, 22-32

Association Meetings: 5, 20

Attendance: 31-32, 50, 70-71

Back to School Nights: 52

Class Coverage: 26, 30, Exhibit E

Class Size: 26

Coaching: 18, 31, 70-71, Exhibit C

Classroom Observations: 37-39

Compensation: 68, Exhibit D-E

Conferences: 7-8

Course Approval: 11-13

Death Benefits: 58

Death in the Family: 49

Driving Time (Mileage): 32

Dues: 1-2

Extracurricular Activities: 69-70, Exhibit B

Evaluation: 36-39

Faculty Meetings: 6, 31, Exhibit A

Field Trips: 71, Exhibit E

FMLA Leave: 46-47

Grievance: 62-66

Health Insurance: 55-56

Homeroom: 26-27

Home Tutoring: 69, Exhibit E

Hourly Rates: Exhibit E

Illness in Family: 49

Inclusion: 28

In-Service Courses: 6, 9-14, Exhibit E

Jury Duty: 50

Longevity: 68-69

Lunch: 19, 22

Medical Insurance Buyout: 56

Mentoring: 6

Mileage (Driving Time): 32

New Teacher Program: 9, 20

Non-Instructional Duties: 22-24, 50, 71, Exhibit E

Observations: 37-39

Orientation: 20

Parent Conferences: 23, 50-52

Paternity & Adoption Leave: 47

Pay Differentials (Stipends): Exhibit E

Pay Rates (Hourly): Exhibit E

Preparations: 20, 22-23, 26

Professional Conferences: 7-8

Professional Development: 6

Promotional Positions: 2, 15-16

Provisional Time: 30-31, Exhibit A

Release Time: 19-20

Salary: 11-15, 68, Exhibit D

Salary Advancement: 13-14

School Day: 2, 7, 25-27

Sick Leave: 41, 57

Sick Leave Bank: 41-45

Snow Days: 6

Summer School: 16, 58-59, 69, Exhibit E

Superintendent's Conference Days: 9, 20, 59

Teaching Assignments: 14-16, 22-32

Tenure: 39

Transfers: 16-17

Travel Time: 32-33

Tutoring: 69, Exhibit E

Vacancies: 15-16

Working Conditions: 18-19